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We employ more than 17 thousand people across Brazil.
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WITH A NATIONAL COVERAGE STRONG 
REGIONAL BRANDS, M. DIAS BRANCO KEEPS 
LEADERSHIP IN BRAZIL’S COMPETITIVE 
COOKIES, CRACKERS AND PASTA MARKET.

INTRODUCTION | COMPANY OVERVIEW  G4-3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8 and 9

Based in the city of Eusébio, 
State Ceará, M. Dias Branco 
S.A. Industria e Comercio de 
Alimentos has been present in 
the Brazilian food market over 
60 years. The Company offers to 
your consumers seven products 
categories:

• Cookies and Crackers
• Pasta
• Wheat flour and bran
• Margarine and Vegetable 

shortening
• Cakes and cake mixes
• Snacks
• Packaged toast.

Our products are sold under the 
following main brand names: 
Fortaleza, Richester, Adria, 
Isabela, Basilar, Zabet, Vitarella, 
Pilar, Estrela, Pelaggio, Salsito, 
Predilleto, Bonsabor, Adorita, 
Amorela, Puro Sabor, Medalha 
de Ouro and Finna.

W i t h  o v e r  1 7  t h o u s a n d 
employees, Brazil remains our 
primary market, while exports 
of pasta, cookies and crackers, 
packaged toast,  margarine 
and shortening also served 21 
markets in South, Central and 
North America, Asia and Europe 
in 2015.

The Company is leader in the 
cookies, crackers and pasta 
segments, with a market share of 
28.4% and 27.9%, respectively, 
according to sales volume data 
AC Nielsen for 2015.

M. Dias Branco has an extensive 
domestic presence and close 
proximity to consumer markets 
through 12 Industrial units 
and 29 distribution centers 
strategically located across all 
regions of Brazil 1.

1 Watch our institutional video at www.mdiasbranco.com.br/ri.

OUR TEAM AT 
DECEMBER 2015 WAS 

17.292
STRONG.
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12
INDUSTRIAL 
PLANTS AND 29 
STRATEGICALLY 
LOCATED 
DISTRIBUTION 
CENTERS

Industrial Plants
Distribution Centers

• Belém/PA
• São Luís/MA
• Teresina/PI
• Eusébio/CE
• GME-Fortaleza/CE
• Cais do Porto - Fortaleza/CE
• Maracanaú/CE
• Crato/CE
• Natal/RN
• São José do Mipibu/RN

• Cabedelo/PB
• Bayeux/PB
• Jaboatão dos Guararapes/PE
• Recife/PE
• Caruaru/PE
• Maceio/AL
• Aracajú/SE
• Salvador/BA (2 CDs)
• Brasília/DF
• Contagem/MG

BISCUIT, PASTA, CAKE AND 
SNACK FACTORY 
MARACANAÚ/CE

WHEAT MILL AND BISCUIT, PASTA 
AND CAKE MIX FACTORY 
EUSÉBIO/CE

WHEAT MILL 
FORTALEZA/CE

MARGARINE AND 
SHORTENING 
FORTALEZA/CE

WHEAT MILL AND 
PASTA FACTORY 
NATAL/RN

WHEAT MILL AND 
PASTA FACTORY 
CABEDELO/PB

WHEAT MILL AND 
BISCUIT, PASTA AND 
CAKE MIX FACTORY
SALVADOR/BA

PASTA FACTORY
SÃO CAETANO DO SUL/SP

BISCUIT FACTORY 
LENÇÓIS PAULISTA/SPCOOKIES AND CRACKERS 

AND PASTA FACTORY 
BENTO GONÇALVES/RS

WHEAT MILL 
ROLÂNDIA/PR

BISCUIT AND PASTA 
FACTORY
JABOATÃO DOS
GUARARAPES/PE

• Duque de Caxias/RJ
• Rio de Janeiro/RJ
• São Caetano do Sul/SP
• Lençóis Paulista/SP
• Jaboticabal/SP
• Pinhais/PR
• Rolândia/PR
• Bento Gonçalves/RS

DISTRIBUTION CENTERS IN ALL REGIONS OF BRAZIL:

NOTE: the Recife/PE and Jaboticabal/SP manufacturing sites were shut down in 2015.
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Our organizational identity is expressed through our mission, vision and values statement, providing to 
our stakeholders with clarity on why we are here, where we want to be and the values we prioritize: G4-56

T h e  c u l t u ra l  e n g a g e m e n t 
campaign throughout 2015, 
entitled “We Are a Team”, 
encouraged employees to engage 
with our Mission, Vision and 
Values. A contest called “People 
of Value” identified employees 

who are recognized as setting 
an example in living our values. 
We discovered surprising stories 
from North to South! In all, 
120 stories were submitted. A 
judging panel selected a story for 
each value, which was awarded 

a prize and disseminated at all 
sites across Brazil.

M.  Dias  Branco l is ted on 
BM&FBovespa in October 2006 
and currently has the following 
ownership structure:

MISSION
Why we are here The future we want to create Our approach

VISION VALUES

To offer high-quality, 
innovative, healthy, tasty 
and competitively priced 
food products people’s 
well-being and happiness.

We contribute to society’s 
development through 
successful and sustainable 
partnerships, a global 
presence and diversified 
business, and are 
recognized for our respect 
for people and the 
environment, ethics, 
creativity, willingness to 
serve, simplicity and 
passion for everything we 
do.

Respect, Ethics, Goodwill, 
Simplicity, Excellence, 
Resilience, Diligence, 
Creativity and Agility.

INTRODUCTION | COMPANY OVERVIEW  

Controlling shareholder — DIBRA

Equity fund

Board of Directors

Statutory Directors 

Free float

63.32%
2.05%

9.52%

25.11%
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AN ENTREPRENEURIAL 
HISTORY

1951
Small-scale production

2000
Expanded production in the 
Northeast

2002
Continued vertical integration

2003
Expansion into South and Southeast 
markets through acquisitions

1953
Industrial-scale production

1960s
Decentralized distribution model

1978
Launched the Richester brand

1980
Launched the new Fortaleza
industrial plant, located in the 
city of Eusebio (CE)

1992
Early vertical integration

Bread and pasta produced at Padaria Fortaleza.

Started operations at a new wheat mill and pasta 
factory in Natal/RN.

Started operations at the vegetable shortening 
margarine and shortening plant in Fortaleza/
CE, with part of the output produced for internal 
consumption and part produced for sale on the 
market. The new facility marked the Company’s 
entry into the margarine and vegetable shortening 
market.

Launched a new wheat mil in Salvador/BA. 
Acquired full ownership of Adria Alimentos do 
Brasil Ltda, a company based in São Paulo and the 

Initiated large-scale production of cookies, 
crackers and pasta at the Fortaleza factory.

Focused on serving small and medium retail 
business with a readily available stock.

Started the operation of Dias Branco Wheat 
Mill (Fortaleza/CE), a wheat milling and flour 
production facility with part of the output 
produced for internal consumption and part 
produced for sale on the market. The new facility 
marked the Company’s entry into the wheat, flour 
and bran market.
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2005
Integrated production model

2006
Listing

2008
Building market leadership

2014
Entering new markets

2015
Continued expansion and vertical 
integration

2011/12
Continued acquisitions

Made an Initial Public Offering on the Novo Mer-
cado segment of BM&FBOVESPA, with shares 
traded under the ticker “MDIA3”.

Developed a modern packaged toast factory in Eu-
sébio/CE and entered the cake mix market.

Started operations at the Eusébio/CE packaged 
toast factory and Rolândia/PR and Eusébio/CE 
flour mills, enhancing vertical integration in flour 
sourcing. Started construction of a new wheat mill 
in Bento Gonçalves/RS.

Acquired NPAP Alimentos S/A, a company based 
in Recife/PE and the owner of the Pilar brand. 
Acquired Estrela Group companies owning 
the Estrela, Pelaggio and Salsito brands. The 
acquisition marked the Company’s entry into the 
cake and snack market.

Acquired Moinho Santa Lúcia, a company based 
in Aquiraz/CE producing flour, pasta and biscuits 
under the Predilleto and Bonsabor brands.

Acquired Indústria de Alimentos Bomgosto Ltda, 
a company based in Jaboatão dos Guararapes 
(PE) and the owner of the Vitarella brand.

owner of the Adria, Basilar, Isabela and Zabet 
brands. Attained domestic market leadership 
Cookies, crackers and pasta sectors.

Expanded Salvador (BA) site with a new 
cookies, crackers and pasta manufacturing 
facility integrated with the existing wheat mill, 
successfully achieving reduced logistics costs, 
vertical integration and product diversification. 
Commissioned a new manufacturing site called 
Grande Moinho Tambaú (GMT) comprising a 
wheat mill and pasta manufacturing facility in 
Cabedelo (PB), including a distribution center.

INTRODUCTION | COMPANY OVERVIEW  
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2015 HIGHLIGHTS

Expanding production capacity

• Started operation of packaged 
toast factory in Eusébio/CE.

• Started operation of two new 
wheat mills: Rolândia/PR and 
Eusébio/CE.

• Upgraded sandwich cookie line 
at Eusébio/CE site.

• Built new cake line at the 
Maracanaú/CE facility.

• Acquired new power substation 

and upgraded the cookies and 
crackers line at the Maracanaú/
CE site.

• Expanded milling footprint in 
Natal/RN.

• Started production of coated 
wafers (D-Tone and Animados 
Zoo — Chocowafers) at Jaboatão 
dos Guararapes/PE.

• Purchased machinery and 
equipment for expansion of a 

cookies and crackers line at the 
Jaboatão dos Guararapes/PE 
unit.

• Started construction of new 
wheat mill in Bento Gonçalves/
RS.

• Procured and installed new 
sandwich cookie, special and 
hard-dough biscuit line at Bento 
Gonçalves/RS.

• Chairman of the Board Ivens Dias Branco was 
presented with a Grand Order of Industrial Merit 
by the Portuguese Government and a Medal of 
Industrial Merit in the Bakery and Pastry Industry 
in Brazil.

• CEO Ivens Dias Branco Júnior was presented with 
a Medal of Industrial Merit 2015 by the Ceará 
Industry Federation (FIEC).

• M. Dias Branco was presented with an award 
in the Semi-Ready Meal Categories from the 
Parana Supermarket Association (APRAS) at the 
Mercosuper trade show.

• M. Dias Branco was recognized in the 7th edition 
of the Brazilian Bakery Industry’s Biggest and Best 
awards.

Awards
• Vitarella and Richester featured on Kantar 

Worldpanel’s list of Brazil’s 50 Most Chosen 
Consumer Brands.

• Adria was again named one of “Brazil’s 50 most 
valuable brands” in a ranking published by Isto É 
Dinheiro in partnership with business consultants 
Millward Brown Vermeer.

• The Delmiro Gouveia award was presented for 
the fourth consecutive time in recognition of M. 
Dias Branco as the largest company in the State 
of Ceará, where our Corporate Headquarters are 
located. M. Dias Branco has also ranked second 
in Social Performance among companies with 
annual revenue of over R$ 90 million.
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Product launches
The most important product launches during the year were:
• Adria branded toast.
• Isabela branded toast.
• A new Estrela-branded ©Disney Toy Story-themed product line.
• Isabela branded mini wafers.
• Animados Zoo Chocowafers.
• New Vitarella branded products: D-Tone, toast, Namesa margarine, Vita cookies, Maria Mini, Maizena Mini 

and new flavors of the SaltVip, Treloso Clubinho and Treloso Bolinho products.

Expanding market leadership
• M. Dias Branco recently established market leadership in the cookies and crackers segment in Brazil’s 

Southeast. The Company was already the undisputed market leader in the broader domestic cookies and 
crackers market.

Virtual platforms
• New mobile application for investors.
• New corporate website (www.mdiasbranco.com.br).

In 2015, were opened the toast factory and wheat mil in the city of Eusébio/CE.

INTRODUCTION | COMPANY OVERVIEW  
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ABOUT THIS REPORT AND 
OUR SUSTAINABILITY 
AGENDA
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In this Annual Report 2015 we 
have used the same reporting 
process as for the previous year, 
with our financial, social and 
environmental performance 
described in a single report. 
Our aim is to demonstrate to 
our stakeholders the “integrated 
thinking” advocated by the 
I n t e r n a t i o n a l  I n t e g r a t e d 
Reporting Council (IIRC) to drive 
sustainable business growth.

In this second edition of our 
report, we provide readers with 
information on how we create or 
protect business value over the 
long term. It covers all business 
units and the results of operations 
during the period.

This report has been prepared in 
accordance with the Core Option 
under Global Reporting Initiative 
(GRI) G4 Reporting Guidelines, 
with independent insurance 
provided for certain disclosures. 
Assurance has been provided 
by specialist consultants as 
described in Assurance Letter. 
G4-32

Financial disclosures conform 

to the International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued 
by the International Accounting 
Standards Board (IASB) and the 
interpretations issued by the 
International Financial Reporting 
Interpretat ions Committee 
(IFRIC), as adopted in Brazil by 
the Technical Pronouncements 
C o m m i t t e e  ( C P C )  t h r o u g h 
Technical  Pronouncements 
Committee Interpretations (ICPC) 
and Guidelines (OCPC) approved 
by the Brazilian Securities 
Commission (CVM).

Other sources of  relevant 
i n f o r m a t i o n  s u p p o r t i n g 
disclosures include technical 
standards (ISO 9001, ISO 14001 
and ISO 22000) ,  Brazi l ian 
regulations on labor relations 
and internal systems including 
Management by Goals (MBG), 
Matrix Budgeting, Strategic 
Management and World-Class 
Management.

World-Class Management is an 
excellence model that drives 
improvement in production 
results by decreasing losses and 
developing high-level operating 

efficiency across six dimensions: 
Productivity, Quality, Costs, 
Delivery, Sustainability and 
People Development.

STRATEGIC 
SUSTAINABILITY 
AGENDA G4-18 TO 21, 24 TO 26

A set of priority sustainability 
issues was established in 2014 
through an assessment  of 
global trends affecting the food 
industry, as well as a sector and 
market-specific assessment. 
These assessments and studies 
provide comprehensive insights 
into the vision and aspirations 
of multilateral organizations 
and regulators, governments, 
academia and civil society. 
The process was conducted by 
a steering and management 
committee  with  specia l is t 
advisory support, and covered 
the following global food industry 
trends:

M. Dias Branco has established strategic sustainability plans and goals for 2021 which are 
monitored through monthly performance assessments.

ABOUT THIS REPORT AND 
OUR SUSTAINABILITY
AGENDA G4-28 to 30
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These global trends remain true 
today in our business environment 
and are the foundation of our 
sustainability strategy, which 
we describe in the tables on the 
following pages along with our 
long-term goals (for 2021) for each 
of these material topics.

POPULATION AND
INCOME GROWTH

AN ESTIMATED POPULATION
OF 9 BILLION IN 2050 WITH HIGHER
AVERAGE PURCHASING POWER.

CHANGING
DEMAND

PATTERNS

FOOD SECTOR

INCREASING
GOVERNMENT
INTERVENTION

GREATER
CORPORATE

ACCOUNTABILITY

CHANGING
CONSUMER VALUES

COMPETITION
FOR NATURAL

RESOURCES

CLIMATE CHANGE

INCOME GROWTH WILL INCREASE
DEMAND FOR HIGHER VALUE
ADDED FOODS.

CHANGES IN AGRICULTURAL
LAND USES AND GREATER
VOLATILITY IN AGRICULTURAL
COMMODITIES PRICES.

DECLINING FARM AREA PER CAPITA.
HIGHER ENERGY PRICE VOLATILITY
AND INVESTMENTS IN RENEWABLE
ENERGIES. WATER SCARCITY.

GROWING CONSUMER
AWARENESS OF SOCIAL AND ENVIRONMENTAL

ISSUES SURROUNDING MANUFACTURING,
THE VALUE CHAIN AND PRODUCTS.

GROWING CONCERN OVER FOOD SAFETY,
HEALTHINESS AND FUNCTIONALITY.

A COMMITMENT TO FOOD SECURITY,
REDUCING HUNGER AND POVERTY,

AND ENVIRONMENTAL CONSERVATION.
INCREASINGLY STRINGENT CONTROL 

OF WATER AND ENERGY CONSUMPTION
AND EMISSIONS AND WASTE.

SOCIAL AND ENVIRONMENTAL
ISSUES ACROSS THE VALUE CHAIN.

STRICTER SOCIAL AND
ENVIRONMENTAL LEGISLATION AND

STANDARDS. PRIVATELY OWNED
LAND IN FOREIGN COUNTRIES.

INCLUSION OF SMALL FARMERS
IN THE BROADER MARKET AND

INCENTIVES FOR ENVIRONMENTALLY
FRIENDLY FARMING PRACTICES.

STAKEHOLDERS

LEADERSHIP CIVIL SOCIETY GOVERNMENT CUSTOMERS SUPPLIERS INTERNAL 
STAKEHOLDERS

CLIMATE SURVEY X X

CUSTOMER SERVICE X X

ETHICS CHANNEL X X X X

INTERVIEWS X X

SOCIAL INVESTMENT X X X X

SELF-ASSESSMENT 
QUESTIONNAIRES X X X

ABOUT THIS REPORT AND OUR SUSTAINABILITY AGENDA  G4-28 to 30

The second year in the process of formally 
incorporating sustainability into our business 
strategy was completed in 2015. With new 
Company practices and stakeholder requirements 

In addition to the studies and 
discussions described above, the 
Relationship Channels described 
in the table below provide 
additional support in identifying 
stakeholders’ needs as they relate 
to the impacts from our operations. 
The information compiled has 
been correlated with our Strategic 

arising on an ongoing basis, implementing our 
Strategic Agenda and enhancing our relationship 
platforms are an integral part of our management 
approach.

RELATIONSHIP CHANNELS

GLOBAL FOOD INDUSTRY TRENDS

Sustainability Topics so they can 
be managed by the relevant 
departments. For the purposes of 
this report, these channels relate 
directly to the Social Investment, 
Communities, Transparency and 
Engagement topics described in 
detail in Social and Environmental 
Performance.
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SUSTAINABILITY 
STRATEGY
M. DIAS BRANCO

STRATEGIC TOPIC

NUTRITION & 
HEALTHINESS

PACKAGING

WHY IT IS IMPORTANT TO US AND 
STAKEHOLDERS 

In addition to standardized food quality that is appropriate 
for consumption, food and nutritional security has come to 
be understood as a household’s physical, social and economic 
access to sufficient, safe and nutritious food for all members. A 
recent increase in prevalence of diseases related to obesity and 
the costs of treatment have made this a matter of public health. 
The resulting changes in consumer values and awareness of the 
relationship between obesity and an unhealthy diet has led to 
growing concern about eating healthy and functional foods.

Global guidelines for the consumer goods and packaging 
industries have encouraged initiatives that focus on reducing 
packaging weight, increasing recycled content and increasing 
post-consumer packaging recycling rates. Brazil’s National Solid 
Waste Policy (PNRS) establishes that the responsibility for the 
waste generated throughout a product’s life-cycle is to be shared 
among manufacturers, distributors, retailers and consumers. 
While a mandatory requirement, this also creates opportunities 
to establish new recycling businesses generating income for 
informal waste collectors.
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DRIVERS COURSES OF ACTION EXPECTATIONS FOR 2021

>>  Develop products that 
c o n t r i b u t e  t o  r e d u c i n g 
malnutrition among children 
and youth in Brazil.

>> Engage in R&D to improve 
the health attributes of existing 
product lines and develop new 
product lines.

>> Implement reverse logistics 
schemes through partnerships.

> >  W i t h  s u p p o r t  f r o m 
g o v e r n m e n t  i n n o v a t i o n 
incentives,  evaluate new 
materials in the context of 
design for sustainability.

>> A product range with a 
more nutritious profile and 
increased use of natural 
ingredients.

>> Lower levels of sugar, 
sodium and trans fats. 

>> Clean labeling.

>> Renewable materials.

>> Reduced packaging weight.

> >  S u s t a i n a b l e  d e s i g n 
a n d  p r o d u c t  l i f e c y c l e 
management.

>>  Increase the share 
of products with more 
nutritious properties in our 
product offering.

>> Eliminate trans fats 
across our product range.

>>  Replace raffia and 
p o l y e t h y l e n e  f l o u r 
packaging with FSC -certified 
paper to meet increasing 
consumer demand.

>>  Introduce bundling 
films with 100% recycled 
materials for the pasta 
lines.

>> Reduce flexible laminate 
weight.

>> Reduce bundling film 
thickness from 50µm to 
40µm at the São Caetano 
do Sul (SP) unit.

2 FSC: the Forest Stewardship Council. FSC Certification is recognized globally and is present in 75 countries.

ABOUT THIS REPORT AND OUR SUSTAINABILITY AGENDA  G4-28 to 30



20           A N N U A L  R E P O R T  /  2 0 1 5

SOLID WASTE, 
WASTEWATER, WATER 

AND ENERGY

COMMUNITIES AND 
SOCIAL INVESTMENT

Eco-efficiency involves initiatives and investments in 
production systems, products and services to reduce 
environmental impacts while generating an economic 
return. These initiatives aim to reduce consumption of 
raw materials and inputs such as water and electricity, 
while also reducing greenhouse gas emissions and waste 
throughout the organization. Eco-efficiency initiatives can 
provide financial returns through the savings generated by 
the efficient use of natural resources and can also mitigate 
potential compliance risks. With the advent of Brazil’s 
National Solid Waste Policy, post-consumer reverse logistics 
for packaging has become mandatory and also involves 
external stakeholders.

Our engagement with society ranges from narrowly defined 
issues affecting communities surrounding our operations 
to broader issues affecting society as a whole. Developing 
positive relations with communities surrounding our 
operations and retail distribution network can contribute to 
minimizing the potential negative impacts on neighboring 
and more sensitive communities. From a broader 
perspective, society has called upon companies to contribute 
more effectively on issues related to their business activities 
which can be addressed through social investments and 
support for socially important causes.

STRATEGIC TOPIC
WHY IT IS IMPORTANT TO US AND 

STAKEHOLDERS 
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>> Establish a corporate function to 
make environmental management 
a routine process, improving 
efficiency and productivity in the 
use of natural resources in the 
medium and long-term through 
investment out of both Company 
and incentive-backed Research & 
Development funds.

>> Reduce waste output from 
processes.

>> Properly dispose of process 
waste (recycling and reuse).

>> Post-consumer reverse 
logistics for packaging.

>> Water recycling.

>> Incremental reduction of 
water and energy consumption.

>> Competitively priced 
electricity.

>> Water security.

>> Energy efficiency.

>> Lower fossil fuel intensity.

>> Effectively reduce waste 
streams across all units.

>> Implement water 
recycling at units with 
wastewater treatment 
plants.

>> Incrementally reduce 
water and energy 
consumption compared 
with previous years.

>> Support the development of 
the communities surrounding 
our units through a structured 
e n g a g e m e n t  p r o c e s s  a n d 
harmonious relationships that 
observe the principles of social 
responsibility.

>> Develop an action plan to 
incorporate social investment 
that is resonant with our business 
activities, using both Company 
and tax incentive funds to support 
civil society organizations and 
their missions.

>> Operate with a focus on the 
business but also taking into 
account the areas within our 
influence.

>> Strategic allocation of 
social investment.

>> Engagement and 
relations with surrounding 
communities.

>> Implement a social 
investment model with 
impact metrics.

>> Implement our 
Engagement Plan at all 
business units.

ABOUT THIS REPORT AND OUR SUSTAINABILITY AGENDA  G4-28 to 30

DRIVERS COURSES OF ACTION EXPECTATIONS FOR 2021
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TRANSPARENCY AND 
ENGAGEMENT, CULTURE, 

HEALTH AND SAFETY

INPUTS

Quality of life at the workplace (through occupational health and 
safety programs) and personal and professional development 
are two critical success factors for any organization. The quality 
of human capital must therefore be a focus area for any company 
today.

Consumers are increasingly aware of the importance of 
their purchasing decisions. They are demanding that the 
organizations providing their products and services be socially 
and environmentally responsible. Companies in the food 
industry, in particular, are increasingly expected to be ethical and 
transparent, especially in providing clear and accurate labeling 
information. Brazil’s legislation has also become increasingly 
stringent in this regard.

Increasing consumer concern over environmental issues and 
potential joint liability and reputation damage arising from 
suppliers’ practices can create risks for businesses. These 
concerns also create opportunities for developing initiatives 
for the benefit of the business, such as sourcing from local 
small-scale farmers or participation in local and regional 
voluntary initiatives in partnership with other companies and 
nongovernment organizations. 

Climate change could potentially affect agricultural land uses 
and the supply of essential commodities for the food industry, 
resulting in volatility in commodities prices. In addition, 
competition with other crops could create instability in the 
supply of basic agricultural products for the food industry.

STRATEGIC TOPIC
WHY IT IS IMPORTANT TO US AND 

STAKEHOLDERS 
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>> Invest in the quality of life 
and professional development 
of our employees and develop 
a sustainability culture across 
the organization.

>> Provide communication 
c h a n n e l s  f o r  s h a r i n g 
i n f o r m a t i o n  w i t h  o u r 
stakeholders.

>> Sustainability culture.

>> Development and 
recognition of human capital.

>> Occupational Health & 
Safety.

>> Relations with customers 
and consumers.

>> Including sustainability 
content in Corporate 
University training 
programs.

>> Ensuring that all 
employees have a positive 
perception of the Company 
and abide by sustainability 
principles in their work 
and voluntary activities. 
Employee perceptions 
will be measured through 
surveys.
 
>> An injury rate not 
exceeding 0.5.

>> As part of a formal internal 
risk monitoring process, 
gain an understanding of the 
specific issues that are critical 
for the supply of agricultural 
commodities and keep abreast 
of supply-side social and 
environmental pressures

>> Social and environmental 
aspects relating to 
agricultural commodities.

>> Social and environmental 
aspects relating to 
procurement.

>> Qualify and monitor 
a l l  s u p p l i e r s  h a v i n g 
an impact  on quality, 
environmental, food safety 
and occupational safety 
issues, as well as companies 
having no impact but which 
hare critical to the business.

ABOUT THIS REPORT AND OUR SUSTAINABILITY AGENDA  G4-28 to 30

DRIVERS COURSES OF ACTION EXPECTATIONS FOR 2021
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STATEMENT FROM THE CHAIRMAN AND CEO G4-1

We are pleased to report on our 
financial, operational, social and 
environmental performance in 
2015. This has been an especially 
challenging year for the Brazilian 
business community amid a 
recessive economy and poor-
performing indicators including 
h i g h  u n e m p l oy m e n t ,  h i g h 
inflation, a significant weakening 
of the Real (dramatically affecting 
dollar-denominated costs) and a 
significant real wage decline.

The adverse business environment 
required us to use our best efforts 
to overcome the short term 
challenges while maintaining 
and building the structural 
foundations needed for growth 
in the medium and long term. 
Cost efficiency and productivity 
enhancing ini t iat ives  were 
intensified, as were investments in 
business expansion and business 
modernization compared with the 
previous year.

Two new flour mills started 
operation in Eusébio (CE) and 
Rolândia (PR), work began on 
construction of another mill in 
Bento Gonçalves (RS), and we 
restructured our production 
process and upgraded existing 
manufacturing plants. These 
i n i t i a t i v e s  h a v e  i m p r o v e d 
production efficiency through the 
use of state-of-the-art production 
process, and reflect our confidence 
in the business and in Brazil’s 
potential.

In financial performance, a 
highlight in 2015 was revenue 
growth from the previous year 
to R$ 4.6 billion, with EBITDA 

reaching R$ 686.6 million. In 
environmental performance, 
significant progress was made 
in 2015: we successfully reduced 
plastic content in our packaging 
materials; we decreased our 
landfilling rate by half; we doubled 
our water recycling rate; and we 
optimized our water consumption 
per ton of product.

In people management,  we 
p r i o r i t i z e d  c a r e e r  g r o w t h 
opportunities by increasing 
promotions through internal 
selection processes or for merit, 
which has further strengthened 
our talent retention policy. Our 
Corporate University delivered a 
record number of training hours. 
In occupational safety, a highlight 
was a further reduction of our 
injury rate compared with the 
previous year.

We continued to invest in process 
and product innovation, denoting 
our commitment to operating 
excellence. Management and 
g o v e r n a n c e  m e t h o d s  w e r e 
improved as part of an ongoing 
strategy to improve the Company’s 
ability to serve customers and 
consumers. We are going from 
strength to strength in fulfilling 
our mission of offering food 
products for people’s nourishment 
and enjoyment.

Also important were the initiatives 
implemented in 2015 as part of 
our sustainability strategies. We 
remain committed to delivering 
on our Strategic Sustainability 
Agenda through Working Groups 
dedicated to  implementing 
established action plans, defining 

“WE ARE GOING 
FROM STRENGTH 
TO STRENGTH IN 
FULFILLING OUR 
MISSION.”
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Francisco Ivens de Sá Dias Branco
Chairman of the Board of Directors

Francisco Ivens de Sá Dias Branco Júnior
CEO

a long-term vision for each of 
our priority topics and creating 
a  Sustainabil i ty  Committee 
consisting of directors from across 
the organization.

We are grateful for the commitment 
of  our  employees  and the 
continued support of our partners 

Francisco Ivens de Sá Dias Branco / Chairman of the Board of Directors (left) 

Francisco Ivens de Sá Dias Branco Júnior / CEO

and investors. We are optimistic 
about the future and the following 
generations, and reiterate our 
commitment to continue using our 
utmost skill and effort to ensure 
that M. Dias Branco continues to 
learn from each new challenge 
and grows continually stronger, 
and is recognized in the highest 

regard among stakeholders and 
society.





MARKET 
OVERVIEW 
AND STRATEGY
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M. Dias Branco will continue to work to strengthen our brand 
presence and market leadership in Brazil, with a particular 
focus on regions where we have greater market share. We 
have also intensified investments in food product development 
and will continue to invest in improving operating efficiency.

In this chapter we provide an overview of the markets where 
we operate (Wheat mill, pasta and cookies & crackers), 
significant aspects of our business model, our brand 
advertising campaigns, and the primary risks inherent to the 
business.

We end this chapter with a discussion on our key strategies 
and outlook for the coming years.

MARKET 
OVERVIEW
& STRATEGY
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CONTEXTO DE MERCADO E ESTRATÉGIA

A stocker at a supermarket.
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MARKETS

WHEAT AND WHEAT MILLING

Following the deregulation 
process in the early 90s, the 
Government adopted policy 
measures aiming to expand 
domestic wheat production. 
A Minimum Guaranteed Price 
Policy was instituted to ensure 
producers are able to market 
their produce for a reasonable 
minimum price. This policy 
i s  s u p p o r t e d  by  Fe d e ra l 
Government Loans, Federal 
Government  Purchases ,  a 
Marketing Premium (PEP) and 
Equalizing Premium (PEPRO). 
In practical terms, the four 
mechanisms above are designed 
to equalize the difference 
b e t w e e n  t h e  m i n i m u m 
guaranteed price and market 
prices, which are typically 
determined by the international 
market.

Wheat productivity in Brazil 
remains low compared with 
the world’s primary producers, 
but has improved considerably 
over recent years. Climate 
conditions unfavorable to 

winter crops throughout most 
of Brazil, combined with soil 
properties, affect Brazil’s wheat 
crops and/or production costs. 
Despite the State’s efforts to 
guarantee producers’ income, 
many suppliers, and particularly 
Argentina, are able to ship their 
wheat at costs lower than the 
national rate and/or with higher 
quality standards. 

According to the United States 
Department of Agriculture 
(USDA), world wheat production 
for the 2014/2015 harvest 
was 1.4% higher than for 
the previous harvest, while 
production for the 2015/2016 
harvest was around 0.9% higher 
than for the 2014/2015 harvest, 
as shown in the graph below. 
The major wheat producers 
are the European Union, China, 
India, the United States and 
Russia, with the United States 
and European Union being the 
largest exporters globally. 

Brazil is among the world’s five 

largest importers. While the 
latest USDA report in March 
2015 ranks the European Union 
as the world’s largest exporter, 
Argentina supplies over half of 
the wheat consumed by Brazil’s 
flour mills. 

According to the Brazilian 
Wheat Industry Association 
(ABITRIGO), in 2014 there were 
a total of 201 active wheat mills 
in Brazil, largely concentrated 
in the South and Southeast 
near the primary suppliers of 
commodities. Brazil’s South has 
the largest share of the milling 
market (45.0%), followed by the 
Southeast (25.7%) and the North 
and Northeast (25.4%). The 
Midwest is the region with the 
smallest share at only 3.8%. 

Wheat planted area for the 
2014/2015 harvest increased 
by 24.8% to 2,758.0 thousand 
hectares, resulting in increased 
production of 8.0% in relation 
to the previous year. Wheat 
production was 5,971.1 metric 

Produção mundial de trigo (mil toneladas)

* Estimate as of March 2016.
Source: USDA (United States 
Department of Agriculture).

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16*

715,356 725,471 732,316
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MARKET OVERVIEW AND STRATEGY

THE PASTA INDUSTRY
According to the International 
Pasta Organization (IPO), total 
pasta production volume in 
Brazil was in the range of 1.2 
million metric tons in 2014, 
behind only Italy (3.4 million 
metric tons) and the United 
States (2.0 million metric tons).

In relation to pasta consumption, 
Brazil is listed as the third 
largest pasta consumer in the 
world, behind only Italy and 

the United States. However, 
when comparing per-capita 
consumption there is a clear 
disparity.The difference between 
per-capita pasta consumption 
for an Italian and Brazilian is as 
high as 20 kg.

According to the Brazilian 
Association of Biscuit, Pasta, 
Industrialized Bread and Cake 
Industries (ABIMAPI), a factor 
which makes higher expansion 

of national consumption levels 
difficult is that Brazilians see 
pasta as a secondary and not a 
main dish. In addition, rice is a 
major competitor to pasta as a 
lower priced carbohydrate.

According to data from the 
latest Household Budget Survey 
prepared by the Brazilian 
Institute of Geography and 
Statistics (IBGE), per-capita 
consumption of rice in Brazil 

tons compared with 5,527.9 
metric tons in the previous year, 
according to the Brazilian food 
supply agency, CONAB.

On the demand side, the market 
is extremely diluted. According 
to the Brazilian Bakery and 
Confectionery Industry 
Association (ABIP), the bakery 
sector is among the largest 
industrial segments in Brazil 
and comprises 63.2 thousand 
bakeries throughout the country, 
which served an average of 39.8 
million customers per day in 
2015, generating approximately 

818 thousand direct jobs. It is 
the only industry that is present 
in every district across Brazil. 

Also according to ABIP, the per-
capita consumption of bread 
in Brazil is 33 Kg per year on 
average, approximately half the 
60 kg per year recommended 
the World Health Organization 
(WHO). It is also lower than 
annual consumption in 
Argentina (70 kg) and Chile (90 kg). 

Consumption is limited on 
account of factors related to 
eating habits, in addition to 

competition from replacement 
products, such as corn and 
cassava flour. The population’s 
purchasing power is one of the 
factors which contributes to low 
per capita consumption. Of the 
bread consumed in Brazil, 86% 
is locally produced bread (52% 
being rolls).

Finna branded flour is used in pies, cakes and other recipes.
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is approximately 26.5 kg/per 
year, significantly higher than 
the demand for pasta (6.0 kg/
per year in 2014), according 
to the International Pasta 
Organization (IPO). This sector 
has become more consolidated 
following intensive merger and 

acquisition activity. More than 
half of the market is currently 
dominated by six companies in 
terms of sales volume.

According to data from AC 
Nielsen on marketed volumes 
in 2015, M. Dias Branco is the 
market leader with a share of 
28.4%. The Southeast region 
accounts for approximately 
43.8% of pasta consumption in 
Brazil, the Northeast region for 
28.8%, the South for 19.2%, the 
Midwest for 6.9% and North for 
1.3%.

According to data from AC Nilsen 
and ABIMAPI, the types of pasta 
which experienced the highest 
growth between 2010 and 2015 
are instant noodles and fresh 
pasta, with a growth of 47.2% 
and 42.5% respectively in sales 
value. Increased consumption 

and sales were the result of 
practicality, attracting children, 
young people and adults.

Companies have increased 
investments in developing 
more practical products such as 
instant noodles with a sachet of 
sauce and pre-cooked lasagnas. 
A determining factor for the 
expansion of new investments 
in producing instant noodles is 
profitability.

According to ABIMAPI and 
AC Nielsen, a kilo of regular 
dry pasta cost an average of 
R$ 4.97 in the retail market in 
2015, while instant noodles cost 
approximately R$ 13.06 per kilo.

M. DIAS BRANCO 
LEADS BRAZIL’S 
PASTA MARKET WITH 
A MARKET SHARE OF 
28.4%

Our pasta products have a significant presence on Brazil’s market.
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Brazil ranks 4th globally in 
biscuit sales, with a record of 1.2 
million metric tons sold in 2014, 
according to data from ABIMAPI 
and Euromonitor. According 
to AC Nielsen, the Southeast 
accounted for the largest 
volume of biscuit sales in Brazil 
in 2015 at approximately 45.5%, 
explained by the Southeast’s 
larger per-capita income and 
the fact that biscuit consumption 
is  s trongly inf luenced by 
households’ purchasing power. 
The Northeast accounted for 
30.3%, the South for 15.1%, the 
Midwest for 7.9% and the North 
for 1.2%.

Per-capita cookies and crackers 
consumption in Brazil stands 
at about 8.5 kg/per year, while 
countries such as Argentina and 
the United Kingdom consume 
more than 10 kg per capita per 

year. Six companies currently 
account for 62% of the biscuit 
market, and the remainder of 
the market is distributed among 
a large number of minor players.

According to AC Nielsen data 
for 2015, M. Dias Branco is the 
market leader in sales volume 
with a share of 27.9%.

Over  recent  decades  the 
population’s upward mobility 
has led to increased consumption 
of biscuits, including higher 
value added products. Biscuits 
which are considered healthy 
have also shown expressive 
growth rates, demonstrating an 
opportunity for expansion in 
this market.

THE COOKIES AND CRACKERS INDUSTRY

M. DIAS BRANCO 
IS THE ABSOLUTE 
LEADER IN THE 
COOKIES AND 
CRACKERS MARKET 
WITH A MARKET 
SHARE OF 27.9%.

Richester branded cookies on display at a pointofsale.

MARKET OVERVIEW AND STRATEGY
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An important feature of the 
company,  with a material 
effect on its financial situation, 
lies in the fact that there is 
vertical integration of the 
production process. The main 
inputs of its products, wheat 
flour and vegetable fats, are 
produced by the company itself. 
This integrated production 
chain provides conditions for 
better production planning, 
better product quality, better 
consumption efficiency of the 
main inputs, more competitive 
prices for products and better 
control of production costs.

I n  2 0 1 5 ,  t h e  c o m p a n y 
manufactured 83.4% of all 
the wheat flour and 92.1% of 
all the shortening used in its 
production process, increasing 
t h e  v e r t i c a l i z a t i o n  ra t i o 
compared to the previous year.

Another key differentiator of M. 
Dias Branco is the geographic 
alcoverage of the production 
and distribution units, present 
in the South, Southeast, North, 
Northeast and Midwest regions, 
enabling it to operate in all 
regions of the country. The wide 
production and logistics network 
allows flexibility in meeting 
the demands of the different 
markets, at competitive costs.

Another important  aspect 
for the company’s financial 
performance  lies in the fact 
that, for over 60 years, it has 
developed and consolidated a 
dispersed distribution model, 
which,  without  adversely 
affecting  personalized service 
to large clients, is structured to 
cater mainly to micro, small and 
medium retailers with a prompt 
delivery sales system with 
weekly visits to its clients. G4-9

The industrial units located in 
various States of Brazil permit 
flexibility in the production of 
the various brands, reducing 
logistics costs and increasing 
the efficiency of distribution 
to attend large networks, 
wholesalers and especially 
the thousands of small and 
medium-sized retailers spread 
throughout Brazil.  G4-12

The efforts for building solid 
business relationships with 
customers allied with the 
numerical distribution of the 
client base and with the strong 
regional brand spermit making 
credit sales to clients with a 
negligible level of default.

Throughout 2015, M. Dias Branco 
continued its  investments 
in Marketing to enhance the 
relationship of the brand with 
the consumers of its products, as 

BUSINESS MODEL

The wheat flour produced by the Company is a key differentiator in the vertical integration strategy.
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presented in the following section 
“brands and campaigns”.

With respect to its acquisitions, 
M. Dias Branco is always seeking 
opportunities for expanding its 
operations in its current and 
potential markets, focusing 
on relevant aspects such as 
the strength of the brands, the 
distribution model, the market 
share and the potential for 
obtaining synergies.

The main raw materials,   
acquired on the domestic and 
international market, used for 
the production of the Company’s 
products are: wheat, palm oil, 
soybean oil, sugar, cocoa and 
starch, as well as plastic and 
paper/cardboard packaging, 
electricity and water. These 
inputs are always managed 
considering the positive and 
negative impacts on the natural 
capital, as presented in the 

Chapter “Socio-environmental 
Results”. G4-12

M. Dias Branco has a team of 
committed, trained employees, 
in addition to experienced 
executives aligned with the 
interests of its shareholders and 
other stakeholders. Programs for 
development and involvement 
of teams are intensified every 
year, in order to recognize and 
strengthen our human capital.

Transparency in relations 
a lsofavors  the  company’s 
s h a r e  c a p i t a l ,  t h r o u g h 
actions in communities in the 
neighborhood of the units, the 
management of relationship 
channels such as the customer 
service system and ethics 
channel, in addition to active 
participation in sectorial entities, 
such as the Brazilian Food 
Industry Association (ABIA) and 
the Brazilian Association of the 

Industrial Biscuit, Pasta, Bread 
& Cake Industry (ABIMAPI), for 
example.

For the company, the concept of 
sustainability is the perpetuation 
o f  i t s  a c t i v i t i e s  t h r o u g h 
transparent performance in a 
value chain optimizing the mode 
of production and respecting its 
various targets of interest. The 
strategic themes of sustainability 
permeate the entire value chain 
and guide the economic, social 
and environmental impacts.

Through research, development 
and innovation (RD&I), as well as 
modern management practices, 
the company seeks to maximize 
market  opportunit ies  and 
strengthen collaboration and 
efficiency in its relationships 
with suppliers, employees, 
shareholders and consumers. 
Below we present the business 
value chain synthetically:

SUPPLIES

INPUTS PACKAGING

OPERATIONS

WATER/WASTEWATER ENERGY/EMISSIONS WASTE

PRODUCTS AND SOCIETY

NUTRITION AND
HEALTHINESS

 TRANSPARENCY
AND ENGAGEMENT

 

VEGETABLE OILS, SUGAR,
STARCH, COCOA

SPECIAL FATS AND
MARGARINE UNIT

(GME)

INDUSTRIAL
UNITS

WHEAT
FLOUR

M. DIAS BRANCO

FAT

FLOUR AND
WHEAT BRAN

AND CAKE MIXES

RETAIL/ 
WHOLESALE/ 
DISTRIBUTORS/ 
LARGE RETAIL
CHAINS C

O
N

SU
M

ER

DISTRIBUTION
CENTERS

MILLS

WHEAT

PACKAGING

MARGARINE AND
SHORTENING MARKET

BISCUITS,
PASTA,
CAKES

SNACKS AND TOASTS

RAW MATERIALS

PACKAGING

PRODUCTS

M. DIAS BRANCO VALUE CHAIN

MARKET OVERVIEW AND STRATEGY
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M. Branco has chosen to adopt 
regionally or locally strong 
brands, attending the most 
diverse consumer profile, from 
all social classes, thus trading in 
all the regions of Brazil.

The production of biscuits 
includes salted,filled, buttered, 
coated, sugared, vanilla and 
corn flour biscuits, tartlets, 
rusks,  doughnuts, crackers, 
and wafers. With respect to 
pastathe company has interests 
in common semolina, semolina 
and egg noodles, grano duro, 
lasagna and instant noodles. 
The main biscuit and pasta 
brands are: Vitarella, Fortaleza, 
Richester, Treloso, Pilar, Estrela, 
Adria, Isabela, Zabet, Basilar, 
Predilleto and Bonsabor.

The production of wheat flour 
and bran covers domestic and 

industrial types of flour and 
bran of the thick type, bran 
threads and reground bran. 
The main brands of flour are 
Medalha de Ouro, for the baking 
industry, and Finna, for the class 
A to D end consumer.

The Company’s production 
includes domestic and industrial 
types of margarine, where 
the brand Amorela is for class 
A/B and fats are for various 
applications, such as deep frying, 
ice cream, coatings, fillings and 
sprays. The main brands are 
Pura Sabor and Adorita, which 
attend the class B/C/D markets, 
and Medalha de Ouro, intended 
for the catering industry.

Cakes and cake mixes complete 
the Company’s portfolio. With 
respect to cakes, the company 
has a line for children in the 

Pelaggio and Richester brands 
and a family line in the Pelaggio 
brand, with unfilled products 
and products that have fillings.

In snacks,it produces the 
traditional and Power types. In 
addition to being differentiated 
in terms of net weight, Corn 
Power snacks are corn products 
with low salt and fat content.

In the toast line four flavors 
were launched by the Fortaleza 
and Vitarella (North/Northeast), 
Adria (Southeast) and Isabella 
(South) brands: Traditional, 
Integral, Multi-grain and Light.

A wide variety of brands is part of the Company’s product portfolio.
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With a diversified portfolio 
of products for consumption 
at home and in the catering 
industry, M. Branco operates in 
the biscuit, pasta, flour and wheat 
bran, margarine, fats,snack, cake, 
cake mix and toast categories 
with regional brands throughout 
Brazil. Maximum attention to 
customer needs, creating and 
launching new products, is part of 
the Company’s business strategy.

During 2015, a number of actions 
and launches were made in order 
to get even closer to its clients.

One of the highlights of 2015 
was the Company’s entry in the 
toast category with the Fortaleza, 
Vitarella, and Adria and Isabela 
brands. The toasts of the M. Dias 
Branco brands are manufactured 
with selected ingredients and 
exclusive raw material from the 
company’s mills, which assures 
excellent quality in the entire 
production process. The result 
is a light, crunchy toast. With 
the implementation of the new 
production line, one of the most 
modern in the world, M. Dias 
Branco entered the market with 
the credentials to be one of the 
main producers in this category.

Another highlight was that 
the company put a new line of 
chocolate coated wafer biscuits 
on the market, aimed at children 
and teenagers: Chocowafer 
Animados Zoo, of the Richester 
brand, and D-Tone, of the 
Vitarella brand.

In the South of Brazil, the Isabela 
brand innovated by launching 
the Mini Wafer line, cut into 

“bite size” squares, in three 
unique flavors: Lemon, Intense 
Chocolate, and Chocolate and 
Hazelnut. The products are 
presented in “stand-up pouch” 
packaging, ideal for eating at any 
time.

The Vitarella brand range was 
also expanded with the launching 
of Vita Cookies, plus new flavors 
for SaltVip, Maizena, Mini, Mini 
Maria, Sequilhos in bulk and 
Bolinho Treloso. To reward 
the consumers of the brand, in 
2015 the promotion “It is more 
Vitarella family” was conducted. 
The super promotion raffled 
three homes and six cars, among 
other prizes, such astablets and 
smartphones.

In 2015, the 140th anniversary 
of the Pilar brand, the most 
traditional of the Pernambuco 
family was celebrated. Pilar 
has been modernized and 
has launched new products 
and packaging, recalling fond 
memories for consumers. 
Traditional Cream Crackers, 
Retro Integral, Water and Salt, 
the New Gufs, in addition to the 
Maria and Maizena cookies and 

crackers, also in the Retro version 
are among the new products.

The Pelaggio brand also 
presented an increase in the 
mix with the launch of the new 
Neapolitan Wafer. Wafers are 
among the brand’s most accepted 
products. There were also new 
products in the Pelaggio lines of 
biscuits and cookies, which now 
imprint the characters of Mickey 
Mouse and his group of friends.

Also the Star brand now has the 
characters from the Toy Story 
series on the wafer and filled line, 
which increased the mix with the 
new chocolate and condensed 
milk (brigadeiro) flavor.

The Salsitos brand of snacks 
has also been renewed, with 
amodernized, standardized 
layout and packaging for all the 
line.

BRANDS AND CAMPAIGNS

Chocowafer was another new product introduced by the Company in 2015.

MARKET OVERVIEW AND STRATEGY
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In the pasta category, the Adria 
brand was the sponsor of the 
largest Italian festivities in São 
Paulo, “São Vitus” and “San 
Genaro”, with disclosure of its 
line of pastas. In addition, it was 
also sponsor of Restaurant Week, 
the city’s largest gastronomic 
event, which produces unique 
pasta dishes in 20 restaurants.

Basilar, a strong brand in the 
interior of the State of São 
Paulo, sponsored the largest 
rodeos in the region, the rodeos 
of Americana and Barretos, 
with tastings of products and 
interaction with the consumers’ 
families.

The Isabella brand won an 
important award for the 
Company in 2015: the best 
Pasta Supplier, in the opinion 
of the 251 largest supermarkets 
of Rio Grande do Sul, with the 
awarding of the traditional 
trophy, the AGAS (Association of 
Supermarkets of Rio Grande do 
Sul) Trolley.

With respect to the category 
for margarine, there was the 
launching of the 1 kg packet of 
the Puro Sabor brand, greater 
economy for the consumer. 
The brand also strengthened 
its presence in social network 
profiles and launched its blog, 
with recipes, tips on health 

and quality of life and news. 
Furthermore, in partnership with 
Finna, a M. Dias Branco brand 
of flour and cake mixes, actions 
were conducted in the main 
Saint John (São João) festivals in 
the northeast of Brazil, with the 
handing out of free samples and 
the tasting of typical dishes.

In a year filled with new launches 
and awards, our brands have 
continued to stand out through 
offering quality products to 
consumers.

In 2015, the Adria brand won on 
award for being among the 50 
most valuable brands in Brazil 
according to the magazine, ISTOÉ 
Dinheiro. The Isabella brand also 
received the award of Top of 
Mind of the State of Rio Grande 
do Sul, in the ranking of the 
magazine, Amanhã.

In 2015 the Vitarella brand was 
featured in events that awarded 
the brands most remembered 
by consumers in the State of 
Pernambuco. In JC Recall of 
Brands, Vitarella won first place 
in the categories Filled Biscuits, 
Cream Crackers and Noodles, 
also winning second place in the 
ranking of most remembered 
brands, with the pasta, Vitarella. 
It also won the award Marca 
que Eu Gosto (Brands that I like) 
given by the newspaper, Diário 

de Pernambuco, in the categories 
for  Noodles and Biscuits, and 
was winner of the Award for 
Top Brands, sponsored by the 
newspaper, Jornal Vanguard 
of Caruaru, in Noodles, Cream 
Crackers and Biscuits with 
Fillings.

The Fortaleza brand won two 
awards. Once again, it won 
the prizeTop of Heartwith 
its Cracker and Maizena 
biscuits as a result of a survey 
conducted with customers of 
the supermarkets of Salvador/
BA and the metropolitan region. 
In the Award for Great Brands 
(Prêmio Grandes Marcas (Diário 
do Nordeste/CE)), which features 
the public’s favorite brands, 
with editions in Fortaleza and 
Juazeiro do Norte, in addition to 
the Fortaleza Cracker, the public 
emphasized the excellence in the 
manufacturing of pasta.

The disclosure of the brands of 
flour was a highlight in specialized 
events, with demonstrations of 
bread specially prepared with 
our products: FestPan (a festival  
of baking and confectionery), 
FENNOPAN (North-Northeast 
Bread-making  and Catering 
Industry Fair, CONGREPAN 
(Brazilian Congress of the Bread-
making and Confectionery 
Industry  and Ceará Pão, all held 
in the Northeast region of Brazil.

Campanha realizada em 2015 com a marca Vitarella.
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The company, in the pursuit 
of continual improvement in 
its structure for governance, 
risk and control, adopts as 
benchmarks the guidelines 
of the main entities in these 
areas, such as COSO(Committee 
of Sponsoring Organizations 
of the Treadway Commission)
IIA(Institute of Internal Auditors)
and IBGC (Brazilian Institute of 
Corporate Governance).

Accordingly, it has an Audit, 
Risks and Compliance Boardwith 
specific managements for each 
area, reporting directly to the 
Audit Committee. This, in turn, 
is a non-statutory advisory 
body for the Board of Directors, 
currently consisting of three 
independent members and one 
external alternate member. 
The Committee is responsible 
for giving support  to the 
shareholders and to the Council 
in their activities of supervising 
relevant themes related to:

• the accuracy and reliability 
of the financial information 
r e p o r t e d  t o  t h e  B o a r d , 
shareholders, and stakeholders 
in general.

• the efficiency and effectiveness 
of the riskmanagement process 
and internal control systems.

• contracting, guiding, reviewing 
andassessing the activities of 
the Audit, Risk and Compliance 
Committee and the Independent 
Audit.

• adherence to legal requirements 
for financial, tax and accounting 
reporting.

• assessing and monitoring 
c o m p l i a n c e  b y  t h e 
Company’s directors with the 
recommendations made in 
audit reports and by regulatory 
agencies.

• monitoring potential conflicts 

of interest and compliance with 
the Company’s code of ethics.

•  t h e  e n c o u r a g e m e n t , 
development and sustainability 
of good corporate governance 
practices.

 
To this end, the Committee held 
monthly meetings throughout 
the year, in which it issued 
opinions and recommendations 
to Management and the Board, 
t h r o u g h  f o r m a l i z i n g  a n d 
sending minutes.

The company has a formal risk 
management policy, approved 
by the Audit Committee, in which 
it classifies the main strategic, 
market, regulatory, reporting 
and operating risks, based on 
qualitative and quantitative 
measurement methodologies. 
GRC (Governance, Risk and 
Compliance) software has been 
implemented for electronic 
management of the risk matrices 
and internal audit test routines 
and monitoring of the corrective 
action plans.

Additionally,  the company 
offers its employees and any 
other interested parties the 
Ethics Channel, an instrument 
for receiving communications 
related to conduct contrary to 
its code of ethics. The Ethics 
Channel is a free, confidential, 
outsourced service, accessible 
by phone, e-mail or internet G4-56.

RISKS

The code of ethics is one of the Company’s risk management instruments.

MARKET OVERVIEW AND STRATEGY
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In 2015, the company mobilized 
the leadership team for the 
preparation of the strategic 
planning for 2016 and to 
s tart  reviewing the  f ive-
year strategic planning. The 
managers  part ic ipated in 
lectures on economic scenarios, 
the behavior of commodities 
and inputs, market analyses 
and commercial strategies. The 
collective discussion generated 
important reflections and 
suggestions, helping with the 
preparation of the budget and 
strategic management – two 
management tools that work in 
harmony.

To encourage the engagement 
o f  e m p l o y e e s  w i t h  t h e 
Company’s strategy, in 2015 
a communication campaign 
was conducted entitled “We 
are the M. Branco Team”, 
with the presentation of the 
new wording of the Mission, 
Vision and Values. Throughout 
the year, the employees were 
encouraged to become aware of 
the Company’s goals, to follow 
its results, and deepen their 
knowledge and experience in 
practicing the organizational 
values. The campaign included 
cultural competitions, videos 
with senior management, 
training and advertising pieces.

The company continuously seeks 
to strengthen its strategic pillars 
of operation: brands, vertical 
in tegrat ion ,  d is tr ibut ion , 

organic expansion through 
acquisitions, innovation and 
operational efficiency. These 
at tr ibutes  are  constant ly 
worked on in order to expand 
or maximize the Company’s 
competitive advantages.

Throughout 2015, aiming at 
increasing  its level of vertical 
integration, M. Dias Branco 
started the operation of a 
new wheat mill located in the 
town of Eusébio/CE (physically 
integrated with its biscuit, pasta 
and toast factory) and of a wheat 
mill located in Rolândia/PR. 
In addition, work was started 
on a new wheat mill in Bento 
Gonçalves/RS (also physically 
integrated with its biscuit 
factory and pasta factory) 
which, when completed, will 
contribute towards achieving 
100% vertical integration of 
the main raw materials of the 
products manufactured by the 
Company.

The year 2015 was also marked 
by entry into new markets, 
with the start-up of the toast 
factory and expansion of sales 
of cake mix. In both markets, the 
company uses synergies coming 
from the sales and distribution 
infrastructure, the integration 
of the production process and 
the strength of its brands, 
optimizing the operation in 
higher value-added products.

STRATEGY & OUTLOOK

Employee with raw wheat, in 
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With respect to acquisitions, 
the company is proceeding 
withits search for opportunities 
to expand current markets and 
potential markets, focusing 
on relevant aspects, such as 
the strength of the brands, the 
distribution model, the market 
share and the potential for 
synergies.

G i v e n  t h e  c u r r e n t 
macroeconomic  scenario , 
M. Dias Branco, in order to 
minimize as much as possible 
the impact of the inflation of 
its costs, caused especially by 
the appreciable devaluation in 
the exchange rate, has worked 
significantly towards creating 
greater efficiency in its operation. 
Among the strategies adopted, 
the increase in verticalization, 
the  r es tr uc tur ing  o f  the 
production process for pastas 
in the State of São Paulo and the 
reduction in the cost of energy 
through migration of part of the 
consumption to the free market 
are emphasized.

Over the next few years, the 
Company intends to continue 
growing in regions where it 
still has a smaller market share, 
to intensify studies in search 
of opportunities in new food 
products and to continue to 
invest in improving operating 
efficiency.

front of the new mill opened in Eusébio/CE.

MARKET OVERVIEW AND STRATEGY
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PERFORMANCE
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M. Dias Branco continues to prioritize cost efficiency 
through investments in vertical integration. In a particularly 
challenging year, we focused on process and product 
innovation in an effort to improve operating efficiency and 
productivity.

As a publicly traded company, M. Dias Branco is required to 
conform to the stringent financial management standards 
laid down in applicable law. We consider both the direct and 
indirect economic impact from our operations, including 
issues related to the development of communities surrounding 
our operations and the economic impacts of improving or 
worsening social or environmental conditions.

Following a year of economic stagnation in 2014, the year 
2015 was characterized by a severe economic downturn and 
poor performing indicators including high unemployment, 
high inflation, a significant weakening of the Real, and a 
significant real wage decline.

3 Complete and current information on economic performance is available at www.mdiasbranco.com.br/ri.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 3

PERFORMANCE
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NET SALES REVENUE BY PRODUCT LINE*

* Net Revenue in R$ million; weight (net of returned goods) in thousands of metric tons; and average net price in R$/Kg.
**Cakes, Snacks, Cake Mix and Packaged Toast.

PERFORMANCE

2015 2014 VARIAÇÕES

Product 
Lines

Net 
Revenue Weight Average 

Price
Net 

Revenue Weight Average 
Price

Net 
Revenue Weight Average 

Price

Cookies 
and 
crackers

2.390,9 503,8 4.75 2.402,4 525,4 4.57 -0.5% -4.1% 3.9%

Pasta 1.043,7 340,2 3.07 1.056,8 359,8 2.94 -1.2% -5.4% 4.4%

Flour and 
Bran 887,0 769,3 1.15 863,6 764,0 1.13 2.7% 0.7% 1.8%

Margarine 
and 
vegetable 
shortening

220,2 65,9 3.34 206,2 61,9 3.33 6.8% 6.5% 0.3%

Other 
Product 
Lines**

80,4 7,9 10.18 50,9 4,5 11.31 58.0% 75.6% -10.0%

TOTAL 4.622,2 1.687,1 2.74 4.579,9 1,715,6 2.67 0.9% -1.7% 2.6%

In an adverse economic environment, the challenges of creating sustainable value for our shareholders and 
other stakeholders were naturally greater in 2015, requiring us to strike the soundest possible balance be-
tween our efforts to address short-term difficulties and the development of the structural foundations nee-
ded for growth in the medium and long term.

Net revenue G4-9 was R$ 4,622.2 million in 2015, an increase of 0.9% from 2014. Revenue growth was helped 
by a 2.6% increase in average prices, partly mitigating a 1.7% reduction of sales volumes due to the economic 
downturn.

CHANGES IN NET REVENUE (R$ MILLION)

* Compound Annual Growth Rate.

CAGR: 12.3%* 

2011

2.911,0

20132012 2014 2015

3.545,1 4.311,6 4.579,9 4.622,2

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
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Year on year, the increase in 
average net revenue per ton 
sold (2.6%), especially in biscuits 
and pasta, contributed to net 
revenue growth of 0.9% in 2015 
compared with 2014, despite the 
economic slowdown in Brazil, 
with high inflation and reduced 
demand creating circumstantial 
downward pressure on sales 
volume (-1.7%).

Revenue performance was 
also helped by commercial 
initiatives such as discounts 
and promotional and media 
campaigns at regional events. 
The Company also launched 50 
new products in 2015, adding a 
further R$ 51.0 million to gross 
revenue for the period.

Cost of Goods Sold (COGS) 
was R$ 3,183.1 million in 2015, 
or 68.9% of net revenue (66.3% 
in 2014). The year-over-year 
increase of 4.9% in absolute 
terms, or 2.6 percentage points, 
in the percentage of COGS out of 
net revenue was affected by the 
following factors:
 
• An increase in the average prices 
of wheat and vegetable oil of 
8.1% and 6.9%, respectively, as a 
result of the weakening of the real 

against the dollar by an average 
of 41.6% in 2015 compared with 
2014;

• An increase in labor expense as 
a result of collective bargaining 
agreements, a 2.8% increase in 
headcount due to the startup of 
new production lines, and an 
increase in INSS expense following 
the expiration of exemption from 
employers’ payroll charges;

• An increase in overheads and 
especially electric drive expense 
as a result of higher electricity 
rates;

• Reduced consumption of third-
party flour and fat feedstocks due 
to increased vertical integration, 
which helped minimize the effects 
of higher wheat and oil prices.

Production capacity grew by 
5.6% in 2015, largely in the cakes, 
cookies and crackers, pasta, 
flour and bran lines, helped 
by investments in process 
expansion and upgrades as part 
of the Company’s organic growth 
strategy. It is also important to 
note that in 2014 the Company 
completed construction of a new 
packaged toast manufacturing 
facility, providing additional 

production capacity of 14,400 
metric tons per year. Production 
grew by 4.9% compared with 
2014, reflecting a total capacity 
utilization rate of 74.7% in 2015.

Operating expenses increased 
by 1.8% in 2015, an increase 
of 0.2 percentage points as a 
percentage net revenue. Sales 
expenses were 6.7% higher in 
2015 than in 2014, with the most 
significant impact deriving from 
the Company’s shift to direct 
sales to the retail market and the 
resulting replacement of third-
party sales representatives with 
a team of in-company sales staff 
in 2014, in an effort to improve 
sales efficiency in certain areas. 
This resulted in larger staffing 
levels and higher logistics 
costs. However, the economic 
slowdown and the resulting 
decrease in sales volumes in 
2015 reduced the dilution of 
fixed expenses, explaining the 1.0 
percentage-point increase in the 
percentage of fixed expenses out 
of net revenue in 2014.

Conversely,  administrative 
expenses were reduced in 2015 
through initiatives to minimize 
the effects of the economic crisis.

Operating Expense (R$ million) 2015 % RL* 2014 % RL Change

Selling 888.6 19.2% 832.6 18.2% 6.7%

Administrative and general expenses 146.0 3.2% 158.8 3.5% -8.1%

Management fees 11.4 0.2% 10,5 0.2% 8.6%

Tax 17.8 0.4% 20.1 0.4% -11.4%

Depreciation and amortization 20.8 0.5% 19.6 0.4% 6.1%

Other operating expenses/revenue -9.4 -0.2% 15.0 0.3% -162.7%

TOTAL 1.075,2 23.3% 1.056,6 23.1% 1.8%
* Net Revenue.

OPERATING EXPENSE
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Financial revenue (expense) increased from an 
expense of R$ 11.9 million in 2014 to revenue of R$ 
61.4 million, largely as a result of an adjustment 
to tax credits recognized in connection with a res 
judicata court decision in 2015 and higher short-
term financial investment interest as a result of a 
larger volume of short-term financial investments 
and a higher Interbank Deposit Certificate (CDI) 
rate.

As a result of the factors described above, net 
income increased from R$ 599.3 million in financial 

year 2014 to R$ 603.9 million in 2015 (13.1% of 
net revenue in both periods), an increase of 0.8%. 
EBITDA was R$ 686.6 million in 2015 (14.9% of net 
revenue), a decrease of 10.9% from 2014.

Our Statement of Added Value, which describes 
the wealth created by the Company and how it is 
distributed, is as shown in the graph above.

Payroll and related charges

Taxes

Interest and rent

Interest on equity

Tax incentives

Retained earnings

38.30%

25.20%

13.10%

10.30%

6.20%

6.90%

STATEMENT OF ADDED VALUE

4 EBITDA: Earnings Before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation and Amortization.

EBITDA AND NET INCOME

2014 2015

NET INCOME FOR THE YEAR (R$ 
MILLION)

0.8%

599,3 603,9

2015

EBITDA (R$ MILLION)

-10.9%

2014

770,4 686,6

PERFORMANCE
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Leverage is denoted by the ratio 
of net debt to equity. Leverage 
at year-end 2015 was 10.7% 
compared with 5.4% in 2014. The 
increase in leverage is due to an 
increase in debt in connection 
with wheat imports and a 
decrease in cash largely owing 
to cash wheat purchases and 
prepayment of interest on equity 
for year 2015.  G4-9

Cash and cash equivalents were 
R$ 98.5 million in 2015, deriving 
from:

I) Cash generation from operating 
activities of R$ 490.5 million. 

II) An addition of R$ 54.2 million 
in net financing flow from third-
party capital. 

III) Purchases of property, plant 
and equipment and software 
licenses, of R$ 398.5 million.

IV) Purchases of Company shares, 
of R$ 39.4 million. 

V) Payment of interest on equity, of 

R$ 194.1 million. 

VI) Repayment of R$ 11.2 million 
in debt in connection with the 
acquisition of equity interests.
 

C a p i t a l  e x p e n d i t u r e  o n 
expansion and maintenance 
was R$ 456.9 million in 2015 (R$ 
407.9 million in 2014). The most 
significant capital expenditure 
items in 2015 were as follows:

The amounts of and percent changes in gross debt and net debt at year-end 2015 and 2014 were as follows:

447.3

490.5

-11.2

-398.5

-39.4

54.2

-194.1

348.8

Net cash
at Dec 2014

Net cash and
cash equivalents

provided by
operating activities

Payment for
shareholdings

Payment of
property, plant
and equipment

and software licenses

Treasury
shares

Net financing
flow — third-party

capital

Profit
sharing

Net cash at
Dec 2015

10.6% of Net Revenue

CASH FLOW

Capitalization (in R$ million) 31/12/2015 31/12/2014 Change

Short Term 392,1 299,7 30,8%

Long Term 363,1 333,8 8,8%

Total Indebtedness 755,2 633,5 19,2%

(-) Cash (348,8) (447,3) -22,0%

(-) Short-Term Financial 

Investments
(6,1) (1,2) 408,3%

(-) Long-Term Financial 

Investments
(4,1) (9,0) -54,4%

(=) Net Debt 396,2 176,0 125,1%

Equity 3.716,9 3.285,6 13,1%

Capitalization 4.472,1 3.919,1 14,1%

Leverage 10,7% 5,4% 98,15%
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I )  C o n s t r u c t i o n  o f  a n d 
procurement of machinery and 
equipment for a new wheat mill 
in Eusébio/CE unit.

II) Construction of a wheat mill at 
the Bento Gonçalves/RS unit. 

III) Procurement and installation 
of a new sandwich cookie, special 
and hard-dough cookies and 
crackers line at Bento Gonçalves/
RS. 

IV) Procurement of a sandwich 
cookie line at the Eusébio/CE unit. 

V) An upgrade of the sandwich 
cookie line at the Eusébio/CE unit. 

VI) Procurement of packaging 
equipment  machinery  and 
equipment for expansion of a 
cookies and crackers line at the 
Jaboatão dos Guararapes/PE unit. 

VII) A new power substation and 
hard-dough cookies and crackers 
line upgrade at the Maracanaú/
CE site. 

VIII) A milling footprint expansion 
in Natal/RN. 

IX) Construction of a new cake 
line at the Maracanaú/CE facility. 

X) Start up of a coated wafer 
(D-Tone and Animados Zoo — 
Chocowafers) line at Jaboatão dos 
Guararapes/PE.

Capital Expenditure (R$ million) 2015 2014

Facilities 30.5 22.6

Machinery and Equipment 274.6 307.8

Civil Construction 129.3 47.8

Vehicles 3.1 17.8

Computers and Peripheral Equipment 2.0 5.8

Furniture and Fixtures 8.8 5.6

Land 7.0 0.0

Other 1.6 0.5

Total 456,9 407,9

THE COMPANY 
RAISED
ITS INVESTMENTS IN 
2015 COMPARED TO 
THE LAST YEAR.

PERFORMANCE
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Investment grants were R$ 261.1 
million in 2015 compared with 
R$ 239.1 million in 2014. On 
December 28, 2015 the packaged 
toast factory was awarded a 
10-year income tax reduction 
incentive.

Company  Management   fulfilled   
all   of   the   requirements   

The Northeast remains the 
Company’s strongest market, 
accounting for 72% of net 
revenue. We have also expanded 
our decentralized distribution 

SALES BY REGION – 2015 (% OF REVENUE 
NET OF DISCOUNTS)

MARKET SHARE

to   obtain   these   subsidies, 
particularly  in  relation  to  
providing  supporting  evidence  
of  the  investments, job creation, 
production volumes, etc. and that 
the subsidies are not distributed 
as dividends. 

model, which has been especially 
designed to service small and 
medium-sized retail businesses. 

M. DIAS BRANCO 
IS PRESENT IN 
ALL REGIONS 
OF BRAZIL 
THROUGH A 
DECENTRALIZED 
DISTRIBUTION 
MODEL.

72,20%

14.80%

5.90%

4.10%
2.60%

0.40%

Northeast

Southeast

South

North

Midwest

Other countries
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* Direct service.

Customer Mix G4-8 2015 2014

 Retail* 41.2% 40.7%

Wholesale/Distributors 43.3% 44.2%

 Large Chains 12.9% 12.5%

 Manufacturers 2.1% 2.1%

 Other 0.5% 0.5%

The Company implemented a number of changes 
in our commercial department in 2015, with a 
greater focus on retail sales channels. Third-party 
sales representatives were replaced with in-house 
sales staff and initiatives were implemented to 
attract new customers.

The Company remains Brazil’s leading pasta and 
cookies and crackers manufacturer with a market 
share of 28.4% and 27.9%, respectively, in terms of 
sales volume, according to a survey by AC Nielsen.

STOCK PERFORMANCE

Company shares are listed on BM&FBovespa’s Novo 
Mercado and are traded under the ticker symbol 
MDIA3. The company had 28,374,197 shares outs-
tanding at December 30, 2015, representing 25.11% 
of total capital, priced at R$ 66.50 each for a total of 
R$ 1,886.9 million. 

Note: the data includes the newly acquired brands as a result of the Pilar and Estrela acquisitions from 2011 and the Santa Lúcia acquisition 
from 2012.

CHANGES IN MARKET SHARE IN BRAZIL
(AS A PERCENTAGE OF VOLUME)

21.3% 
22.3% 

25.4% 

26.6% 

28.0% 

28.1% 27.9% 

23.2% 23.3% 25.1% 
25.7% 

28.0% 

28.9% 
28.4% 

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Cookies and crackers Pasta

Average daily trading volume in 2015 was R$ 11.1 
million. 

The graph below compares the performance of 
MDIA3 shares with the Ibovespa and IGC  indexes 
for 2015.

5 Enhanced Corporate Governance Stock Index (IGC).

PERFORMANCE
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statements for 2015 and represents 44.1% of 
distributable profit, equivalent to R$ 1.2200 
per share (R$ 1.2129 in 2014) for corporate 
shareholders, exempt of income tax withholding, 
or R$ 1.037 per share (R$ 1.031 in 2014), net 
of income tax withholding, for individual 
shareholders.

M. Dias Branco remained a constituent of 
important domestic and international stock 
indexes in 2015, including BM&FBovespa’s IBrX-
100 and IGC and MSCI’s MSCI Brasil.

The distribution of profits to shareholders as 
interest on equity is reported in our financial 

The Bento Gonçalves/RS unit was expanded in 2015.

Average Daily Trading Volume: MDIA3

JAN/15 FEB/15 MAR/15

VOLUME

APR/15 MAY/15 JUN/15 JUL/15 AUG/15 SEP/15 OCT/15 NOV/15 DEC/15

Yield (%)

MDIA3 X IBOVESPA X IGC
1/1/2015 to 12/31/2015

17,500,000

15,000,000

12,500,000

10,000,000

7,500,000

5,000,000

2,500,000

0

350%

300%

250%

200%

150%

100%

50%

0%

-50%

MDIA3 IBOV IGC
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A school supported by the Company, where employees are active as volunteers.

In 2015 we retained our focus on the issues most significantly 
affecting our social and environmental performance: 
nutrition and healthiness, packaging, waste, water and 
wastewater, energy and emissions, communities and social 
investment, transparency and engagement, and commodities 
and supplies.

Our economic, financial, social and environmental results are 
described in “Strategic Sustainability Agenda”.

SOCIAL AND ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE

PERFORMANCE
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Approved in early 2014, our 
Strategic Sustainability Strategy 
completed its first anniversary 
since implementation in 2015. 
Based on the principles of 
economy, ethics, transparency and 
corporate citizenship, initiatives 
related to strategic sustainability 
topics made further progress and 
helped improve our relations 
with stakeholders, including 
s h a r e h o l d e r s ,  c u s t o m e r s , 
e m p l o y e e s ,  g o v e r n m e n t , 
surrounding communit ies , 
suppliers and broader society.

Through Sustainability Working 
Groups established to enhance 
sustainability practices across 
the business, the Company 
i m p l e m e n t e d  i n i t i a t i v e s 
addressing each of the strategic 
sustainability topics, producing 
significant tangible and intangible 
results. With monthly meetings 
in 2015, each Working Group set 
annual and long-term goals for 
each strategic topic, as described 
in the table on the following page.

A Sustainability Committee was 
also established in 2015 to support 
initiatives in these areas. For 
further details on the Committee, 
see Corporate Governance.

World-Class Management is an 
excellence model that provides 
tools to support initiatives at 

industrial facilities toward 
creating sustainable value, with 
all departments united around 
a single objective: delivering 
exce l l enc e  i n  o pera t i o ns . 
One of the tools that have 
been implemented is Total 
Manufacturing Perfection, which 
focuses on the following pillars: 
Independent  Management , 
Specific Improvement, Education 
& Training, Planned Maintenance, 
Quality and Safety.

Improvement Teams are another 
important aspect of the World-
Class  Management  model . 
These teams brainstorm about 
and implement initiatives to 
improve performance in critical 
manufacturing  indicators . 
Improvement Teams encourage 
i n n o v a t i o n ,  c o n t i n u o u s 
development and commitment 
to results.

Our Manufacturing Management 
System is  another  World-
Class Management tool that 
addresses Quality, Food Safety, 
Environmental and Occupational 

Safety  management  in  an 
integrated manner based on 
international standards.  It 
helps standardize internal 
activities through procedures; 
reduce process waste; increase 
control over each process across 
the organization;  improve 
re lat ions  with  customers , 
suppliers, employees and other 
stakeholders; and increase our 
ability to compete in demanding 
overseas markets. The system 
was first launched in 2015 at the 
Maracanaú/CE and São Caetano 
do Sul/SP sites.

In this chapter we provide details 
on results in 2015 and an overview 
of initiatives in progress for each 
strategic topic.

As described below, for certain 
initiatives a business case was 
established that financially 
quantifies the positive and 
negative impacts from the 
initiative.

SOCIAL AND ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE

CREATING AND 
PROTECTING 
VALUE THROUGH 
SUSTAINABILITY

BOTH TANGIBLE AND INTANGIBLE RESULTS HAVE BEEN ACHIEVED IN TWO YEARS 
SINCE INITIAL IMPLEMENTATION OF OUR SUSTAINABILITY AGENDA.

Youth supported by the Company’s social investments.
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KEY RESULTS FROM OUR SUSTAINABILITY STRATEGY IN 2015

STRATEGIC TOPIC/
WORKING GROUP COURSES OF ACTION KEY RESULTS IN 2015

NUTRITION & 
HEALTHINESS

PACKAGING

WASTE

WATER AND 
WASTEWATER

ENERGY AND 
EMISSIONS

COMMUNITIES & SOCIAL 
INVESTMENT

CULTURE, 
TRANSPARENCY 
& ENGAGEMENT

INPUTS

• A product range with a more nutri-
tious profile and increased use of 
natural ingredients.

• Lower levels of sugar, sodium and 
trans fats. 

• Clean labeling

• Renewable materials.

• Reduced packaging weight.

• Sustainable design and product 
lifecycle management.

• Reduce waste output from 
processes.

• Properly dispose of process waste 
(recycling and reuse).

• Post-consumer reverse logistics 
for packaging.

• Water recycling.

• Incremental reduction of water and 
energy consumption.

• Competitively priced electricity.

• Supply security.

• Energy efficiency.

• Lower fossil fuel intensity.

• Strategic allocation of social 
investment.

• Engagement and relationship 
with communities.

• Sustainability culture.

• Development and recognition of 
human capital.

• Occupational Health & Safety.

• Social and environmental 
aspects relating to agricultural 
commodities. 

• Social and environmental aspects 
relating to procurement.

• 31.5% of recipes contained added nutrients such as vitamins, fibers and 
minerals (30.6% in 2014).

• 16% of packaged toast products sold have lower sodium content.

• Lower sodium content in all other product categories.

• Labels revised for all Vitarella, Pilar, Adria, Isabela, Zabet and Richester 
branded products. 

• Included 75% recycled paper in Tortinha packaging at the Salvador/BA site.

• Reduced consumption of flexible packaging by 159 metric tons.

• Recycling Rate: 59.9% (65.2% in 2014).

• Composting: 11.4% of waste streams in 2015 compared with 5.8% in 
2014.

• Landfilled waste: reduced from 14.6% to only 7.5% YoY.

• Water recycling implemented at two units.

• Average water consumption per metric ton of products produced was 
0.51 m3 in 20156.

• The water recycling rate increased to 16.4% in 2015 compared with 
8.8% in 2014.

6 The consumption reported for 2014 excluded the flour segment.

• Migrated another three sites to the free electricity market (estimated 
savings of 39.25%).

• Energy efficiency initiatives delivered savings of more than R$ 1 million.

• Fleet emissions were 9,152 tCO2e per month, an increase compared with 
2014 (7,416 tCO2e per month).

• Vehicles fitted with air deflectors delivered average fuel savings of 7%.

• Implemented food donation policy: 63 charities received food donations 
worth a total of R$ 696 thousand.

• Partnered with companies to raise funds for two charities through the 
PRONAS and PRONON programs.

• Donated R$ 2.8 million in own funds for social programs and R$ 732.5 
thousand through tax incentives.

• Visited 31 supported charities and collected information to inform the 
Relationship an Engagement Plan.

• Over 700 thousand training hours were delivered in 2015, a 16% increase 
from 2014.

• A sustainability strategy was formally included in the M. Dias Branco 
Corporate University architecture; induction training attended by 679 
employees.

• 1,200 employees advanced in their careers on being promoted through the 
internal selection process or through merit, as part of our talent retention 
policy.

• Our injury severity rate was 56.42 and our injury frequency rate was 1.02.

• The Systems Management department developed a Supplier Qualification 
Management procedure jointly with the Procurement, Commodities, 
Sustainability, Third-Party Management, R&D and related departments.

• Created qualification questionnaires for suppliers of direct materials, 
indirect materials and critical services, including information on 
registration, social and environmental responsibility and questions on 
applicable legislation.

• Created a risk criticality matrix for social and environmental risks 
relating to primary supplies and commodities.
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The Research and Development 
(R&D) Department is active in 
research, development and 
innovation and provides support 
in regulatory affairs and sensory 
analysis. The department works 
to meet the Company’s strategic 
goals, including by improving 
the nutritional properties and 
healthiness of our products and 
reducing environmental impact. 

In 2015, R$ 6.5 million was 
invested in research and 
development (R$ 5.2 million in 
2014) across 49 projects, including 
new products, improvements, and 
optimization. For example, the 
Company conducted a project to 
update all regulatory information 

on raw materials (ingredients, 
additives and co-formulants) in 
terms of nutritional composition, 
allergens and compliance with 
new legal requirements. A 
number of projects were also 
conducted to optimize resource 
utilization without affecting 
product quality or sensory 
properties. 

The Innovation pillar is at the 
heart of our innovation process 
and involves investigating and 
anticipating trends, creating 
ideas, managing our portfolio 
and raising funds for new 
projects. The innovation process 
has multidisciplinary teams from 
across the Company who are 

NUTRITION & HEALTHINESS

COURSES OF 
ACTION

• A PRODUCT RANGE WITH A MORE NUTRITIOUS 
PROFILE AND NATURAL INGREDIENTS.

• LOWER LEVELS OF SUGAR, SODIUM AND TRANS 
FATS.

• CLEAN LABELING.

Research and Development Laboratory in Eusébio/CE.

R$ 6.5 MILLION 
WAS INVESTED IN 
RESEARCH AND 
DEVELOPMENT IN 
2015.
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active in both implementation 
and in decision-making bodies. 

Initiatives in 2015 relating to 
the development of a more 
nutritious product range with 
natural ingredients involved an 
assessment of the Company’s 
current portfolio in terms of 
functional ingredients (vitamins, 
fiber, minerals) against the 
nutritional needs of children and 
youth. 

The primary vitamins and 
minerals added to our current 
product portfolio are: vitamins A, 
B1, B2, B5, B6, B9, C, D, E, PP, Fe, Zn 
and Ca. In 2015, 31.5% of revenue 
was from products containing 
added micronutrients (30.6% in 
2014), with a notable increase in 
micronutrient content in snacks 
and cake mixes. FPSD-FP7

Category % sales with added nutrients 
out of total revenue FPSD-FP7

% sales with added nutrients 
out of total revenue from 
product category

2014 2015 2014 2015
Cookies and
Crackers 10.71% 11.19% 19.50% 20.76%

Pasta 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Margarine 
and  Vegetable 
Shortening

4.14% 4.29% 99.80% 100.00%

Fats 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Flours 15.38% 15.20% 100.00% 100.00%
Bran 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Cakes 0.29% 0.31% 39.20% 42.80%
Snacks 0.04% 0.26% 10.10% 60.28%
Cake Mixes 0.02% 0.11% 100.00% 100.00%
Toast - 0.16% - 27.27%
Grand Total 30.59% 31.53% - -

PERCENT OF SALES VOLUME, BY PRODUCT CATEGORY, CONTAINING ADDED NUTRIENTS SUCH 
AS FIBERS, VITAMINS, MINERALS AND OTHER FUNCTIONAL ADDITIVES

Calculation based on net revenue net of discounts and returned products.

Two other initiatives during the 
year are also worth mentioning: 
the development of and a launch 
strategy for a product range with 
an enhanced and comprehensive 
nutritional balance and an 
assessment of replacement 
candidates for polysorbate and 
azodicarbonamide in flour 
formulations. 

The Dias Branco Mill  also 
provided training to bakers and 
bakery owners on developing 
products using Finna whole 
wheat bread mix with added 
grains.  Brown bread is  a 
starting point for a natural 
and healthier diet. Dietary 
fibers play an important role in 
filtering ingested fats, providing 
benefits to the digestive system. 
Functional breads provide 
beneficial health effects in 

addition to their basic nutritional 
properties.

In terms of reducing sugar, 
sodium and fat content, sodium 
content was reduced across all 
product categories under an 
agreement with the Ministry of 
Health, and our biscuit, cake, 
pasta, margarine (some brands) 
and packaged toast products 
were adapted for compliance 

IN 2015 THE 
COMPANY 
SUCCESSFULLY 
INCREASED THE 
PERCENT CONTENT 
OF ADDED 
MICRONUTRIENTS.

PERFORMANCE
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w i t h  M i n i s t r y  o f  H e a l t h 
Resolution 360/2003 on “zero” 
trans fats in nutritional claims. 

Other  in i t ia t iv e s  inc lude 
r e s e a r c h  i n t o  p o t e n t i a l 
candidates for replacement of 
sodium in some raw materials 
categories and alternative 
processes  for  e l iminating 
partially hydrogenated fats, as 
well as R&D projects toward 
reducing sugar content.

Over the long term we will 
develop alternative formulations 
for fats and margarines without 
partially hydrogenated bases. 

In clear labeling, we conducted 
a review of all product labels to 
provide a clearer understanding 
of and clarity on nutritional 
information for consumers. All 
Vitarella, Pilar, Adria, Isabela, 
Zabet and Richester branded 
labels were revised. 

These initiatives have been 
designed to provide consumers 
with products that are both tasty 
and nutritious, following global 
trends in the food industry while 
also taking into account the 
specific aspects of the Brazilian 
market.

SODIUM 
CONTENT 
HAS BEEN 
REDUCED 
ACROSS ALL 
PRODUCT 
CATEGORIES.

Product labels were revised for improved clarity on nutritional information.
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The departments involved 
i n  p a c k a g i n g  d e s i g n  a r e 
R&D, Marketing, Quality and 
Regulatory Affairs. Packaging 
design is business unit specific, 
although a  given type of 
packaging can cover multiple 
brands. As a result of acquisitions 
over recent years, there are now 
differences in production and 
logistics processes across units.

T h e  R & D  d e p a r t m e n t  i s 
responsible for generating 
information to inform product 
labeling and for defining 
packaging dimensions and 
structural composition. Effective 
specifications help minimize 
waste. A continual improvement 
initiative is in progress to reduce 
waste and improve product 
preservation. M. Dias Branco 

seeks to optimize packaging 
design to the extent technically 
and economically feasible. 

Packaging redesign initiatives 
implemented at ten business 
units and spanning different 
pasta and biscuit product ranges 
reduced plastic consumption by 
159 metric tons.

Changes in annual packaging 
consumption are presented in 
the table below. G4 EN1

An initiative planned for the 
following years at the Bento 
Gonçalves (RS) manufacturing 
site is the use of recycled plastic 
packaging produced using wind 
power, renewable raw materials 
and sustainable practices.

PACKAGING

COURSES OF ACTION

• RENEWABLE MATERIALS.

• REDUCED PACKAGING WEIGHT.

• SUSTAINABLE DESIGN AND PRODUCT 
LIFECYCLE MANAGEMENT.

Material Annual Volume 2014 Annual Volume 2015 Change 2015/2014

Nonrenewable

Flexible films (laminates, 
metalized laminates and 
monolayer) – metric tons

11,803,707 12,739,529 7.9%

Rigid packaging – Units 50,233,678 53,574,126 6.6%

Renewable Paper packaging (recycled, 
kraft and semi-kraft) – units 95,792,334 103,909,337 8.5%

ANNUAL CONSUMPTION OF PRIMARY PACKAGING G4 EN1

PLASTIC 
CONSUMPTION 
WAS REDUCED 
BY 159 METRIC 
TONS IN 2015.
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Plans for the long term include 
the introduction of fully recycled 
bundling films for all pasta lines 
in the South and South East, 
using biodegradable films for 
an item in our portfolio with a 
sustainability appeal, and using 
recyclable pasta bundling film. 
We will also work to reduce 

f lexible f i lm weight ,  f i lm 
bundling thickness from 50μm 
(microns) to 40μm (microns) 
at one unit, and stretch film 
consumption.

R e s u l t s  t o  d a t e  h a v e 
demonstrated that in addition 
to being essential for product 

competitiveness at the point of 
sale, packaging development 
supports cost reduction as well 
as decreasing environmental 
impact.

M. Dias Branco is equipped with state-of-the-art biscuit production lines.

PERFORMANCE
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Waste management at M. Dias 
Branco is the responsibility of the 
Environment and Administrative 
Departments and is conducted in 
accordance with our Environment 
Policy7 and ISO 14001 environment 
management system. Initiatives 
across the Company during 
Environment Week were geared 
to raising awareness about waste 
segregation. 

All units have Waste Centers for 
temporarily storing waste for 
treatment and final disposal. Some 
centers are equipped with waste 
processing machines, presses and/

or scales. In 2015 a qualification 
process with specific criteria was 
implemented for waste collection, 
transport and disposal services. 
Sales of solid process waste and 
unusable products generated R$ 
2.2 million in revenue in 2015.

We recycled a total of 23.9 
thousand metric tons, or 59.9% of 
the 39.9 thousand metric tons of 
solid process waste and unusable 
products generated in 2015 (33.1 
thousand metric tons in 2014). 
Composting increased to 11.4% 
of disposed waste against 5.8% in 
2014.

WASTE

COURSES OF ACTION

• REDUCE WASTE OUTPUT FROM PROCESSES.

• PROPER PROCESS WASTE DISPOSAL.

• POST-CONSUMER REVERSE LOGISTICS FOR 
PACKAGING.

LANDFILLED 
WASTE 
QUANTITIES 
DECREASED 
SIGNIFICANTLY 
IN 2015.

7 Our environmental policy is available at www.mdiasbranco.com.br/meio-ambiente/.

Waste segregation is encouraged at Company facilities.

M. Dias Branco has subscribed 
to the post-consumption 
reverse logistics program.
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The Company has not disclosed information on hazardous and non-hazardous waste by method of disposal, but will consider disclosing this information 
in the future. 

Main waste streams:
Recycling: Spent frying oil, ferrous scrap metal, non-ferrous scrap metal (aluminum and copper), paper and cardboard, wood (pallets, scrap wood) 
scrap wood and boards, off-specification products, metal packaging, non-contaminated plastic drums, plastic bags with residual vegetable fat, big bags, 
containers, films and small plastic packaging items, organic process waste, batteries, electronic waste, and construction waste.
Reuse: Tree trimming waste, restaurant waste.
Composting: Refinery sludge
Co-processing: Scrap tires, toxic waste from Wastewater Treatment Plants, contaminated rags and wipes, hazardous waste, paints and solvents, chemicals, 
activated charcoal filters, electrical components, resin, machining fluid.
Incineration: Health Care Service Waste.
Biological Treatment: Wastewater Treatment Plant waste streams containing non-toxic substances, Water Treatment Plant waste streams containing non-
toxic substances, sewer waste streams containing non-toxic substances.
Re-refining: Spent Engine Oil, Diesel Oil.
Other: Forklift Battery (returned to supplier – Reverse Logistics).

The percentage of landfilled 
waste also decreased from 14.6% 
in 2014 to only 7.5% in 2015, 
and the Company is on track to 
achieving best-practice waste 
disposal performance.

The table below provides an 
overview of waste disposal 
methods at the Company. G4-EN23

In 2015 a total of 2,914 kg of 
electronics scrap was disposed 
of using certified responsible 
disposal methods in accordance 
with Act 12305/2010.

M. Dias Branco is a party to 
the General Packaging Sector 
Agreement signed on November 
25, 2015 with the Ministry of 

WASTE DISPOSAL (METRIC TONS)  G4-EN23

Disposal method 2014 2015

Recycling 21,643 65.2% 23,939 59.9%

Reuse 4,353 13.1% 2,459 6.2%

Composting 1,909 5.8% 4,548 11.4%

Landfilling 4,854 14.6% 2,990 7.5%

Co-processing 105 0.3% 224 0.6%

Incineration 43 0.1% 20 0.1%

Biological treatment in 
stabilization ponds - - 5,789 14.5%

Decontamination of 
lamps - - 1 0.0%

Re-refining - - 5 0.0%

Other 277 0.8% 1 0.0%

the Environment. Under this 
agreement, manufacturers, 
i m p o r t e r s ,  r e t a i l e r s  a n d 
distributors of packaging and 
packaged goods undertake to 
work together to ensure that all 
packaging placed on the market 
is properly disposed of.

A post-consumption packaging 
collection program led by the 
Brazilian Association of Biscuits, 
Pasta, Industrialized Bread and 
Cake Industries (ABIMAPI) and 
conforming to the Brazilian 
National Solid Waste Policy has 
furthered the Company’s reverse 
logistics initiatives.

T h e  p r o g r a m ,  w h i c h  i s 
coordinated by the Brazilian 

Personal Care and Cosmetics 
Industry Association, supports 
projects creating jobs and income 
opportunities that promote social 
inclusion, improved workplace 
conditions and quality of life for 
recyclable material collectors. 
The program ultimately helps to 
reduce the negative impacts of 
post-consumption packaging on 
the environment. The Company 
donated R$ 91 thousand in 2015 
to this important initiative.

To learn more about the 
program, please visit: 
www.maoparaofuturo.org.br

PERFORMANCE
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Environmental aspect and impact 
management at M. Dias Branco is 
the responsibility of the Quality, 
Occupational Health and Safety 
and Environment Department, 
which was created in 2013 to 
standardize environmental 
management processes across 
business units, improve emissions 
control and incrementally reduce 
natural resource consumption. 

Through management systems 
such as ISO 14001, which has 
been implemented at  our 
manufacturing sites in Eusébio/
CE and Jaboatão dos Guararapes/
PE and is supported by our 
World-Class Management model, 
the Company has made further 
progress in delivering on our 
Environmental Policy. 

Environmental expenditure 
increased to R$ 9.7 million in 
2015 from R$ 8.1 million in 
2014, including environmental 
staff, monitoring and control 
and expenditure on equipment. 

WATER AND WASTEWATER

COURSES OF ACTION

• WATER RECYCLING.

• INCREMENTAL REDUCTION OF WATER AND 
ENERGY CONSUMPTION.

The Company received a total 
of 10 notices, in one of which 
a settlement agreement was 
reached to reduce the resulting 
fine from R$ 200 thousand to R$ 
65 thousand. G4- EN29 and EN31

Dedicated improvement teams 
were trained in 2015 with a focus 
on reducing water consumption 
at the Eusébio/CE, São Caetano 
do Sul/SP and Fortaleza/CE sites. 
A water management program 
was also implemented at the 
Maracanaú/CE unit to raise 
awareness about responsible 
consumption.

The Quality, Occupational Health 
and Safety and Environment 
Department also measures 
rainwater usage at the Eusébio/
CE site and has developed a 
rainwater budget method that 
will be rolled out at other units8. 

Average water consumption per 
metric ton of products produced 
was 0.51 m³ in 2015. 

Significant progress was also 
made in water recycling, notably 
at the Eusébio (CE), Fortaleza (CE) 
and Jaboatão dos Guararapes (PE) 
units, where recycling rates are 
39%, 30% and 51% respectively. 
As a result, our water recycling 
rate increased to 16.4% in 2015 
from 8.8% in 2014.

M. Dias Branco plans to implement 
water recycling at all units with 
Wastewater Treatment Plants by 
2021. In Jaboatão dos Guararapes 
(PE), our goal is to re-utilize 100% 
of treated wastewater in 2016.

OUR WATER 
RECYCLING 
RATE 
INCREASED 
FROM 8.8% IN 
2014 TO 16.4% 
IN 2015.

8 The new method has currently been implemented at the Jaboatão do Guararapes/PE site.
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PERCENTAGE AND TOTAL VOLUME OF WATER RECYCLED AND REUSED G4- EN10

2014 2015
CHANGE
2015/2014m3 m3

Total volume of water used (m3) 1,188,107 1,229,866 3.5%

Total volume of water recycled or reused (m3) 104,404 202,050 93.5%

% of water recycled or reused 8.8% 16.4%

TOTAL WATER WITHDRAWAL BY SOURCE (M3) G4- EN8

Sources
2014 2015 CHANGE

2015/2014m3 % m3 %

Groundwater 675,524 56,9% 680,566 55.3% 0.7%

Rainwater collected directly and stored by the organization 131,912 11,1% 167,649 13.6% 27.1%

Municipal water supplies or other water utilities 373,533 31,4% 378,254 30.8% 1.3%

Tank trucks 7,138 0,6% 3,397 0.3% -52.4%

Total 1,188,107  100.0% 1,229,866  100.0%  

A rainwater harvesting pond at the Eusébio/CE site

The Company has continued to invest in Wastewater Treatment Plants. A total of 338,049 m3 of 
wastewater was disposed of in 2015. The method of wastewater disposal and treatment at each unit is 
described in the table below: G4- EN22

PERFORMANCE
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Unit Method of Treatment

Total 

Wastewater 

Disposal 

in  m3

Eusébio/CE

The activated sludge process is used with continuous aeration. The treated 

effluent is discharged into a nearby creek in accordance with applicable 

state environmental regulations, with part of the water used for greens 

irrigation. Applicable regulations include SEMACE 151/2002, SEMACE 

154/2002, SEMACE 111/2011, CONAMA 357/2005 and CONAMA 430/2011.

63,379

Fats and Margarines in Fortaleza/CE
Physical-chemical treatment followed by an activated sludge process, in 

accordance with SEMACE Resolutions 154/2002 and 151/2002.
173,469

Maracanaú/CE Primary and secondary treatment at a public wastewater treatment plant.

Natal/RN Wastewater is directed to the local utility, CAERN.

Cabedelo/PB
Wastewater is piped to the Wastewater Treatment Plant. Part of the 

treated wastewater is used for irrigation at the unit.
4,357

Salvador/BA Wastewater is channeled to the local treatment plant. 296

São Caetano de Sul/SP
Wastewater is treated by the São Caetano do Sul Water and Sewer 

Department (DAE).
32,184

Lençóis Paulista/SP Wastewater is channeled to the local treatment plant.

Jaboticabal/SP Wastewater is directed to the public utility for treatment.

Bento Gonçalves/RS

Biological treatment system. Following treatment, the effluent is disposed 

of in the storm water system. Effluent quality is monitored under the 

relevant operation license and in accordance with applicable state and 

federal regulations.

7,626

Dias Branco Mill, Fortaleza/CE Wastewater is directed to the public treatment system (CAGECE). 30

Jaboatão dos Guararapes/PE

Physical-chemical and biological activated sludge treatment. 65% of 

wastewater is reutilized internally (bathrooms, irrigation, façade washing, 

external surfaces and the wastewater treatment process) and 35% is 

directed to the Jaboatão River. Applicable regulations and standards 

include CONAMA 357/05, 430/11 and CPRH 2001. Treated effluent quality 

is monitored through internal and independent analyses, with analysis 

accuracy ensured by process controls.

56,707

Total 338,049

M. Dias Branco plans to expand our ISO 14001 
Environmental Management System over the 
coming years. In addition, dedicated improvement 
teams focused on reducing water consumption 
will be deployed at another three units, and water 
from the reverse osmosis process and storm 

water system will be reutilized at Maracanaú/
CE. Going forward, we plan to implement water 
recycling at all business units with wastewater 
treatment plants and develop a company-wide 
water consumption standard.

WASTEWATER TREATMENT AND DISPOSAL
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Rainwater treatment for use as plant water in Eusébio/CE.

PERFORMANCE
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Progress was also made in 
energy management in 2015. 
Through initiatives such as 
insta l l ing  measuring  and 
control equipment for each 
production line, replacing old 
equipment and assessing new 
energy sources, the Engineering 
department has delivered 
important improvements in 
energy management, an aspect 
which has become increasingly 
strategic for M. Dias Branco. 

Ensuring a competitively priced 
electricity supply is a strategic 
business objective due to its 
significant cost. In 2015 the 
Company initiated a transition 
to the free electricity trading 
market at another three units. 
This is expected to result in 
savings of 39.25% at these units. 

Energy efficiency initiatives at 
two units are describe opposite. 
These initiatives have generated 
annual savings of approximately 
R$ 631 thousand at the Eusébio 
(CE) site, and approximately R$ 
1 million at the Guararapes (PE) 
site.
 

Eusébio/CE

• Elimination of compressed air 
losses – Phase 1.
• Installation of buffer tanks to 
reduce compressor loads and 
potential loss of production 
efficiency.
• Replacement of standard 
motors with high-performance 
units – Phase 1.
• Replacement of conventional 
lamps with LEDs – Phase 1.
• Replacement of compressors 
with blowers.

Jaboatão dos Guararapes/PE

• Lighting automation at wafer 
lines.
• Boiler fuel system 
modifications on the instant 
noodles line.
• Furnace fuel adjustments at 
Plant 2.
• Flash steam recovery station 
for the instant noodles line.
• Efficient lighting at Pasta Plant 1.

ENERGY AND EMISSIONS

COURSES OF ACTION

• COMPETITIVELY PRICED ELECTRICITY.

• SUPPLY SECURITY.

• ENERGY EFFICIENCY.

• LOWER FOSSIL FUEL INTENSITY.

ENERGY 
EFFICIENCY 
INITIATIVES 
HAVE DELIVERED 
IMPORTANT 
RESULTS IN 
BOTH FINANCIAL 
AND RESOURCE 
SAVINGS.
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TOTAL ENERGY CONSUMPTION IN 2015 
(THOUSANDS OF GJ) G4- EN3 

The energy consumption metrics 
adopted by the Company are: 
total energy consumption and 
energy intensity. Results are 
shown in the table opposite.

Energy Sources* 2015

Electricity (thousands of GJ) 1,006

Natural gas (thousands of GJ) 1,894,561

Liquefied Petroleum Gas (thousands of GJ) 36,106

Diesel (thousands of GJ) 3,379

Total 1,935,052

Due to the reduced production 
volumes in 2015, our energy 
intensity (kwh/ton) increased by 
35% compared with 2014.

ENERGY INTENSITY G4- EN5 

Energy Intensity* 2014 2015 Change
(2015/2014)

Electricity (kWh/t of product) 102.63 138.95 35%

* In 2014 we reported only on electricity consumption without including the Jaboatão dos Guararapes/PE site. 
From 2015 the total energy consumption of all units will be disclosed. Energy consumption at distribution centers 
is negligible and has not been taken into account.

A new, fuel-efficient, low emission vehicle fleet.

PERFORMANCE
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GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS (Metric Tons)

Year Qty. of 
carriers

Fuel (liters) Expendi-
ture (R$)

Fossil CO2 
(metric 
ton)

CH4 
(tCO2e)

N2O 
(tCO2e)

Monthly 
Green-
house Gas 
Emissions 
(tCO2e)

Biomass 
Emissions 
(metric 
tons)

Total GHG 
(tCO2e) G4-
EN15

2014* 597 2,832,588 7,211,700 6,971 12 30 7,014 402 7,416

2015 627 3,545,298 10,488,783 8,305 18 144 8,467 685 9,152

9 Legislação Pertinente: Resolução CONAMA 436/2011 (Anexo I); Resolução CONAMA 382/2006 (Anexo II). CETESB L9.221 JUL/1990 Determinação de pontos de Amostragens em Dutos e Chaminés de 
Fontes Estacionárias - Procedimento; CETESB L9.223 Jun/1992 Efluentes Gasosos em Dutos e Chaminés de Fontes Estacionárias - Determinação da Massa Molecular - Base Seca - Método de análise; 
NBR 11966/89 Efluentes Gasosos em Dutos e Chaminés de Fontes Estacionárias da Velocidade e Vazão - Método de Ensaio; NBR 11967/89 Efluentes Gasosos em Dutos e Chaminés de Fontes Estacio-
nárias - Determinação da Umidade - Método de Ensaio; NBR 12019/90 Efluentes Gasosos em Dutos e Chaminés de Fontes Estacionárias - Determinação de Material Particulado - Método de ensaio; 
Method US - EPA7B e CETESB L9. 229: Dutos e Chaminés de Fontes Estacionárias - Determinação de Óxidos de Nitrogênio. Method US - EPA3: Determinação de CO, CO2 e O2.

* The data refers to all distribution centers except the Teresina (PI) site, which generated 988 tCO2e in 2015.

Emissions generated by cargo 
and personnel transportation 
activities totaled 9,151 tCO2e. 
The table below presents the 
GHG emissions for all units.G4-EN15

Initiatives over the following 
y e a r s  w i l l  f o c u s  o n  t h e 
d e v e l o p m e n t  a n d  u s e  o f 
alternative, less polluting and 
more cost-efficient fuels, a 
driver awareness program 
(Ecodriving) and a feasibility 
assessment on the expanded use 
of air deflectors.

NOx, SOx and other significant 
fixed-source emissions are 
monitored against applicable 
environmental regulations9. 
Monitoring results indicate that 
our emissions are well below the 
legal limit. G4-EN21

The Company is also conducting 
a feasibil ity study on the 
construction of a solar farm in 
the office area of one site and is 
considering converting a boiler 
combustion system to natural 
gas using Weishaupt burners 
to reduce consumption. M. Dias 
Branco will undertake further 
energy efficiency initiatives over 
the coming years.

The Company’s mobile source 
emissions primarily relate 
to product transportation. 
The primary impacts from 
transportation (of people and 
goods) are: noise pollution, 
greenhouse gas emissions and 
scrap and spent materials (tires, 
lubricants, etc.).

Vehicle emissions are managed 
by the Logistics department 
using dedicated control panels 
to improve fuel consumption 
efficiency. The Company uses 
opacimeters to measure the 

volume and opacity (darkness) 
of smoke emissions from diesel 
vehicles.

These measurements are made 
annually on each vehicle in 
the distribution fleet. The test 
indicates whether the vehicle 
is compliant with emissions 
regulations. Rejected vehicles 
are sent for maintenance and 
only cleared for operation after 
further testing.

All vehicles purchased between 
2014 and 2015 (106 vehicles) 
have SCR/EGR technology that 
is compliant with Proconve P7 
(Vehicle Air Pollution Control 
Program). These vehicles are 
more fuel-efficient and produce 
less emissions.G4-EN30

Scope 1 direct greenhouse 
g a s  e m i s s i o n s  f r o m  o u r 
transportation fleet for the period 
from 1/1/2015 to 12/31/2015 have 
been measured by a partner firm. 
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COMMUNITIES & SOCIAL INVESTMENT

COURSES OF ACTION

• STRATEGIC ALLOCATION OF SOCIAL 
INVESTMENT.

• ENGAGEMENT AND RELATIONSHIP WITH 
COMMUNITIES.

M .  D i a s  B ra n c o  p l ay s  a n 
important role of corporate 
c i t izenship ,  implementing 
continuous actions for internal 
a n d  e x t e r n a l  c o m m u n i t y 
development. The Company’s 
social activities are conducted 
by the area of sustainability 
and encourage projects focused 
on  cul ture ,  heal th ,  sport , 
education and professional 
training, prioritizing children, 
adolescents and persons with 
disabil i t ies  as their  target 
a u d i e n c e .  I n  a d d i t i o n ,  i t 
supports a number of actions 
of assistance to humanitarian 
causes in the communities in 
the neighborhood of its units.

The company holds meetings 
and makes periodic visits to 
the entities that are supported, 
as  part  of  i t s  governance 
model. This process permits 
c o n s t a n t  a s s e s s m e n t  a n d 
a  quest  for  improvements 
i n  i t s  r e l a t i o n s h i p  w i t h 
t h e  c o m m u n i t i e s  i n  t h e 

neighborhood of its operations, 
as well as with the entities 
supported in the municipalities 
where it operates.

In 2015, the Sustainability area 
implemented new guidelines 
that defined and standardized 
procedures for  request ing 
d o n a t i o n s  o f  f i n i s h e d 
products in all the units. The 
assessments of the requests 
are now analyzed according 
to the criteria established 
in the Social Responsibility 
Policy, seeking to prioritize 
attending the communities in 
the neighborhood of the units 
in these themes and prioritized 
publics. Sixty three entities 
that received the company’s 
p r o d u c t s  a n d  t h a t  w e r e 
benefited in the year with a 
total donation equivalent to R$ 
696 thousand were registered.

W i t h  r e s p e c t  t o  s o c i a l 
investment, M. Dias Branco 
donated R$ 2.8 million in own 

resources to social projects, in 
addition to R$ 727 thousand 
through incentive laws, both 
via the Company and via the 
controlling shareholder (DIBRA 
FUNDO DE INVESTIMENTO EM 
PARTICIPAÇÕES). The table on 
the following page consolidates 
the social investment in 2015.

THE COMPANY 
MAINTAINS 
A CONSTANT 
RELATIONSHIP 
WITH 
COMMUNITIES 
IN THE 
NEIGHBORHOOD OF 
ITS OPERATIONS.

In the Eusébio/CE unit, children from the community make a guided tour of the manufacturing area.

PERFORMANCE
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SOCIAL INVESTMENT IN 2015 (R$)

M. DIAS BRANCO OWN RESOURCES 2.802,559

JORNAL O POVO – YEARBOOK 82,820

ASSOCIAÇÃO CEARENSE DE IMPRENSA 10,000

SOCIEDADE EDUCATIVA CULTURAL POLIESPORTIVA BENTO GONÇALVES 134,000

GETAP – APPLIED TAXES STUDY GROUP 40,000

ASPOFECE – ASSOCIATION OF SERVANTS OF THE FEDERAL POLICE OF THE STATE OF CEARÁ 10,000

INSTITUTO 12 DE MARÇO – RECIFE CONVENTION – XVI FENEARTE 100,000

IRMANDADE BENEFICENTE DA SANTA CASA DE MISERICÓRDIA DE FORTALEZA* 2.142,739

ACADEMIA CEARENSE DE LETRAS 50,000

CÂMARA DE DIRIGENTES LOJISTAS DE FORTALEZA 60,000

FUNDEPAG – FOUNDATION FOR DEVELOPMENT  OF AGRIBUSINESS RESEARCH 20,000

AECIC– ASSOCIATION OF EX STUDENTS OF COLÉGIO DA IMACULADA CONCEIÇÃO 3,000

FACPC – FOUNDATION IN SUPPORT OF THE ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS COMMITTEE 50,000

FUNCARTE – FUNDAÇÃO CULTURAL CAPITANIA DAS ARTES 70,000

MUNICIPAL GOVERNMENT OF BENTO GONÇALVES – MUNICIPAL FUND FOR INTEGRATED DEVELOPMENT 30,000

The company has developed 
new partnerships  through 
two programs set up by the 
Ministry of Health: the National 
Program for Cancer Care Support 
(PRONON), which is a precursor 
and stimulator of projects with 
tax incentives in this segment, 
and the National Program for 
Health Support for Persons with 

Disabilities (PRONAS), which 
makes it possible to train persons 
with impaired hearing for 
inclusion in the labor market.

In this context, M. Dias Branco 
has articulated with two Non-
Governmental Organizations 
(NGOs) and some companies 
based in Ceará, the mobilization 

of resources for the following 
projects:

• PRONAS — Instituto Filippo 
S m a l d o n e :  T ra i n i n g  a n d 
inclusion of deaf persons in the 
labor market — from health to 
inclusion: R$ 512,177.00;

INCENTIVIZED FUNDS 732,500

Rouanet Law – via M. Dias Branco 332,500

CONFERENCE FOR MASTERS AND APPRENTICES ON SEASONING CLOVES (CENTRE FOR RESEARCH AND DIFFUSION 
OF ART) 130,000

A TOUCH OF LIFE 2013 (MODO MAIOR CULTURAL PROJECTS) 12,500

PERNAMBUCO INTERNATIONAL LITERARY FESTIVAL (ANDELIVROS ASSOC. DO NORD. DE DIST. EDIT. DE LIVROS) 190,000

Law Rouanet – via majority shareholder (DIBRA) ** 200,000

TAPERA DAS ARTES DO CORAÇÃO – AQUIRAZ/CE 70,000

ASSOCIAÇÃO BENTO GONÇALVES DE CONV. APOIO INFÂNCIA/JUVENTUDE – BENTO GONÇALVES/RS 65,000

GRUPO BAILARINOS DE CRISTO AMOR E DOAÇÕES, BECAD – FORTALEZA/CE 65,000

Law for Encouraging sport – via majority shareholder (DIBRA) ** 50,000

ASSOCIAÇÃO ESTAÇÃO DA LUZ – VIDA E ESPORTE – EUSÉBIO/CE 50,000

Fundo de Amparo à Criança e Adolescente – via majority shareholder (DIBRA)** 50,000

CRECHE PLENO VIVER – FUNDAÇÃO TERRA – MARACANAÚ/CE 50,000

PRONAS – National Programme for Health Support for Persons with Disabilities  – via majority shareholder 
(DIBRA) ** 50,000

INSTITUTO FILIPPO SMALDONE CONGREGAÇÃO DAS IRMÃS SALESIANAS DOS SAGRADOS CORAÇÕES – 
FORTALEZA/CE 50,000

PRONON - National Program for Cancer Care Support – via majority shareholder (DIBRA) ** 50,000

INSTITUTO DO CÂNCER DO CEARÁ (ICC) – FORTALEZA/CE 50,000
* Amount made available to the institution in compliance with the legal agreement entered into with the Ministry of Labour in process 0001270-52.2013.5.07.0012 — Regional Labour Court of the 7th 
region/CE.
** Donations made by Terminal Portuário Categipe S/A, CNPJ 40.561.649/0001-04, whose majority partners are DIBRA Fundo de Investimentos em Participações and  Dias Branco Adm. e Participações 
Ltda.
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• PRONON — Instituto do Cancer 
do Ceará (ICC): Nova Casa Vida: 
Expansion and improvement of 
the House of Support of the ICC 
— R$ 2,494,828.00

The incentive for volunteer 
work was also a focus of social 
actions in 2015, through the 
creation of D-Day of volunteer 
work. The campaign was 
received with large involvement 
from everyone. There was 
a donation of 3,060 toys by 
the employees for Children’s 
Day for poor communities in 
Brazil. On October 9, seventeen 
institutions throughout Brazil 
received donations and the 
participation of employees 
in recreational activities, 
benefiting 4,560 children.

M. Dias Branco also took part 
in the McHappy Day with an 
investment of R$ 34 thousand 

with the purchase of 2,340 
tickets for the benefit of the Peter 
Pan Association, a reference in 
the fight against cancer in Ceará 
and neighboring states. Part 
of the tickets were addressed 
to the community of Vicente 
Pinzon, located in the vicinity of 
the units in the city of Fortaleza 
/ CE, and the other part was 
addressed to the employees.

Three other initiatives 
undertaken in the Eusébio / EC 
unit are worth mentioning due 
to their continuous nature and 
the number of people affected: 
School Project, Historical Centre 
and Cultural Centre.

The aim of the School project is 
to foster a closer relationship 
with consumers and the 
community in general, receiving 
daily visits from school and 
university students. The entire 

infrastructure is available for 
guided tours, where visitors 
may enjoy the rich experience 
of observing the manufacture of 
biscuits and pasta.

This project is also a strong 
ally in the social actions 
organized by the Company. 
In partnership with various 
areas, it is organizing actions 
such as visits by the employees’ 
children, theatre in schools 
and educational activities in 
associations where we are 
partners. In 2015, the School 
Project received over 14 
thousand visitors and organized 
external programs in 18 
institutions.

The M. Dias Branco Historical 
Centre  retrieves  and preserves 
the  history of success of M. Dias 
Branco through a vast collection 
of texts, documents, photos, 

Employee in a presentation at the M. Dias Branco music festival.

PERFORMANCE
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A Company employee, a paralympic medallist, winning the bi championship in the 2015 Parapan American Games in 
Toronto, Canada.
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packaging, machines, sounds, 
images, relics and commercials, 
whetting the curiosity of the 
visitors who seek to understand 
our past.

The space consists of five themed 
environments, arranged in the 
following exhibitions: “The 
beginning of the story”; “Images 
of success”; “Producing Dreams”; 
“ S o c i a l  r e c o g n i t i o n ”  a n d 
“Challenges and achievements”, 
t h r o u g h  w h i c h  v i s i t o r s 
accompany the development of 
the company from the arrival 
of Manuel Dias Branco in Brazil 
until our latest undertakings.

We have conducted a number of 
mediations with guided tours of 
the exhibitions, catering for our 
internal and external audiences 
with educational activities. 
In 2015, the Historical Centre 
received more than 12 thousand 
visitors, in partnership with 
various areas of the Company.

The  M. Dias Branco Cultural 
C e n t r e   f o s t e r s  c u l t u r e , 
promoting the welfare of the 
Company’s employees, while 
providing a structure composed 
of different environments, such 
as a Reading Room, a Games 
Room, a Multimedia Room, an 
Art Gallery, Cinemas and TV 
rooms, a Theatre and a Library 
with over 8000 books to be lent 
to employees. It also promotes 
cu l tura l  and  educat ional 
a c t i v i t i e s ,  d i s s e m i n a t i n g 
reading by conducting incentive 
campaigns,  as well  as art 
workshops, plays and musical 
performances.

I n  2 0 1 5 ,  m o r e  t h a n  8 0 0 
employees participated in the 

refresher courses in arts. They 
were also offered guitar, singing, 
theatre and ballroom dancing 
courses, forming artistic groups, 
benefiting 300 employees. The 
traditional Arraiá Cultural 
(a Brazilian folkloric festival 
celebrated in  June,  more 
specifically on St. John’s day), the 
Music Festival (which highlights 
the musical talents of employees) 
and Musical Friday, which takes 
place weekly in a given period of 
the year.

With the aim of promoting 
sustainable actions with respect 
to the environment, the Company 
invests  in  environmental 
education initiatives intended for 
the neighboring communities. 
It supports institutions of the 
community and government 
agencies, in addition to providing 
a team of professionals who offer 
environmental management 
programs with internal and 
external activities. G4-27  

The environmental  assets 
of the Salvador/BA unit are 
represented by green masses of 
forests and mangroves, which 
are home to a rich diversity of 
species of flora and fauna. The 
need to ensure the protection of 
natural attributes and establish 
rules for co-existence between 
the ecosystems and industrial 
act ivit ies  has turned this 
region into the Environmental 
Protection Area (APA) of Baía de 
Todos os Santos.

The unit has drawn up a plan 
for environmental management 
b a s e d  o n  e n v i r o n m e n t a l 
characteristics of the area, which 
ensures appropriate industrial 
p ra c t i c e s .  E n v i r o n m e n t a l 

water, air, waste and green 
area control programs are 
developed,  in addition to 
programs encouraging research 
and monitoring of the terrestrial 
fauna,  the environmental 
education of the surrounding 
communities, the study of the 
vegetation  and reforestation.

With respect to the APA, the 
Company has  a  complete 
infrastructure for producing 
and planting seedlings of native 
species used in reforestation 
and landscaping. In the nursery 
3,900 seedlings are produced 
quarterly, which are monitored 
until they reach the planting 
stage.

M. DIAS BRANCO 
PROVIDES A 
NUMBER OF 
CHANNELS FOR 
INTERACTION AND 
RAPPORT WITH 
THE COMMUNITIES.

PERFORMANCE
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In 2015, with the structuring 
of the sustainability area and 
of the “Social Investment and 
Communities” Working Group, 
50% of the industrial units had 
engagement initiatives with 
their neighboring communities. 
The work group benefits from 
the participation of the Legal, 
Human Resources, Sustainability 
and Environment Departments 
and seeks to discuss and assess 
the impacts jointly with the 
communities. The table on 
the next page describes the 
engagement actions. G4-S01

In 2015, the community in the 
neighborhood of the Sewage 
Treatment Station (ETE) of the 
Eusébeo/CE unit questioned 
the odors originating from 
the sewage treatment process. 
The stabilization ponds were 
deactivated and the problem 
was solved. There was an impact 
in communities because of a 
collision caused by a third party 
vehicle with a truck carrying 
vegetable oil from the margarine 
and fats unit in Fortaleza, 
causing an oil spill in the stream 
of the Lagamar community. 
There was also a fortuitous raw 

vegetable oil spill at sea, due 
to the rupture of a valve of the 
pipe for transferring the product 
from a ship to the Margarine 
unit in Fortaleza/CE. Finally, a 
truck containing vegetable oil 
overturned on the road from 
Mossoró/RN, causing loss of part 
of the load, while the other part 
was sent for recycling. G4-SO2 

T h e  c o m p a n y  a c t e d 
spontaneous ly  in  a l l  the 
demands involving the affected 
communities, solving the events 
that occurred and remedying or 
mitigating their impacts.

For forthcoming years, the 
company intends to work on 
the collection and analysis 
of information on the areas 
surrounding the Jaboatão 
dos Guararapes/PE,  Bento 
Gonçalves/RS, Fortaleza and 
São Caetano do Sul/SP units, 
aiming at structuring a plan of 
rapport and engagement with 
the communities, based on the 
specific features of each place.

IN 2015, THERE 
WERE ADVANCES 
IN THE WORKING 
GROUP FOCUSED ON   
ENGAGEMENT IN 
THE COMMUNITIES 
IN THE AREAS 
SURROUNDING THE 
UNITS.
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UNIT

ACTIONS FOR ENGAGING THE COMMUNITIES

SALVADOR/BA

EUSÉBIO/CE

FORTALEZA/CE

BENTO GONÇALVES/RS

MARACANAÚ/CE

JABOATÃO DOS
GUARARAPES/PE

ENGAGEMENT AND RAPPORT  INITIATIVES G4-SO1

The engagement occurs through structured programs with impact assessment 
and initiatives that contribute to local development, focused on income 
alternatives, educational projects and participation in cultural initiatives in 
the community, commemorative dates, campaigns, lectures and training. The 
positive environmental impacts are environmental awareness developed 
through projects supported by M. Dias Branco for children, fishermen, 
shellfish gatherers and all the community that live in the vicinity of the unit. 
Therefore, the company collaborates towards replenishing the environment, 
strengthening native species and improving the quality of life of everyone 
involved.

In addition to implementing the volunteer program at the Manoel Ferreira 
Gomes school, situated next to the sewage treatment plant, the company 
carries out environmental impact assessments and continuous monitoring 
with the community. In 2015, they established a closer relationship with 
the communities’ leaders, donated products and sponsored some social 
events. We also support the “Life and Sport” project, focused on children and 
adolescents of the community, in partnership with other companies.

Monthly, the company participates in meetings with representatives from the 
communities surrounding its two units, including neighboring companies 
and municipal and state agencies, for environmental impact assessments and 
ongoing monitoring. With this relationship with the neighborhood, it is possi-
ble to monitor the needs of the local communities and support projects such 
as Art and Movement for Life (Vida/NEURA), promoted by BCAD (a group of 
dancers), which promotes the cultural and social inclusion of children and 
adolescents in a situation of social vulnerability, transforming them into chil-
dren that are citizens through sports and social inclusion. In addition, the 
Company donates products to community associations.

The company evaluates environmental impacts and continuously monitors 
them, due to the installation of a new mill. Systematic donations of products 
are made to social institutions that operate in the vicinity of the unit. In 
addition, we provide resources for the Abraçaí Project, which promotes 
cultural and social inclusion of children and adolescents in situations of 
social vulnerability, enriching their musical skills and cultural achievements. 
We also sponsor a volleyball team from the community.

Through the majority shareholder, DIBRA we are making a social investment 
in a day care center that promotes cultural and social inclusion of socially 
vulnerable children, seeking to transform their realities. In the same way 
as in other units, we make donations of products, in addition to monitoring 
and assessing environmental impacts. The company also maintains a 
partnership with a local social project, focused on the preparation of athletes 
with disabilities, including some medalists in national and international 
championships.

Constant monitoring of a school in the neighborhood of the unit, adopted by 
the Company, through donations and participation in events with the children 
benefited in socio-cultural actions organized by employees. Environmental 
impact assessments and ongoing monitoring are also performed.

PERFORMANCE
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INTERNAL 
STAKEHOLDERS: 
PEOPLE MANAGEMENT 
AND CULTURE OF 
SUSTAINABILITY

Employee Profile

M. Dias  Branco  inves ted 
continuously and increasingly 
in the training and development 
of its 17,292 employees10 in 
December 2015. The adoption 
of  management tools  and 
the investment in training 
stimulate the team in all the 
units to make a collective effort 
to achieve corporate results and 
professional growth11. 

O perfil dos colaboradores 
disThe profile of the employees 
distributed by age group, gender, 
geographic region, career level 
and area is described in the 
following tables. Most of our 
employees are in the industrial 
area in operational-level jobs, 
followed by the commercial 
area (salespersons and sales 
promoters). With respect to 
gender, 73% are men and 27% 
women.

TRANSPARENCY AND ENGAGEMENT

COURSES OF ACTION

• A CULTURE OF SUSTAINABILITY.

• DEVELOPMENT AND ENHANCEMENT OF 
HUMAN CAPITAL.

• OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY.

• RELATIONSHIP WITH CLIENTS AND 
CONSUMERS.

Gender Quantity %

Women 4,612 26.7%

Men 12,680 73.3%

Total 17,292 100%

Age range Quantity %

Up to 25 3,143 18.2%

26 to 35 7,401 42.8%

36 to 45 4,576 26.5%

46 to 55 1,821 10.5%

Older 
than 56 351 2.0%

Total 17,292 100%

Geographi-
cal region Quantity %

Midwest 80 0.5%

Northeast 14,442 83.5%

North 70 0.4%

Southeast 1,615 9.3%

South 1,085 6.3%

Total 17,292 100%

THE CONTINUING 
TRAINING OF 
EMPLOYEES IS A 
PRIORITY FOR THE 
COMPANY.

PROFILE OF EMPLOYEES AT 
31/12/2015  G4-10 

10 This figure excludes trainees and persons retired due to disability.
11 More information on the policy for people management can be obtained at www.mdiasbranco.com.br/gestao-de-pessoas/.
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Department Quantity %

Administrative 1,789 10.4%

Commercial 3,670 21.2%

Industrial 9,421 54.5%

Logistics 2,412 13.9%

Total 17,292 100%

Career Level Quantity %

Specialists 
(professionals 
and analysts)

647 3.7%

Management 1,188 6.9%

Operational 12,235 70.8%

Sales and Pro-
motion 3,222 18.6%

Total 17,292 100%

PROFILE OF EMPLOYEES AT 
12/31/2015

The actions for the consolidation 
of the culture of sustainability 
in the company are conducted 
t h r o u g h  e d u c a t i o n  a n d 
communication. With respect 
to the continuing education of 
employees, the company has a 
Corporate University.

Corporate Education

In 2015, the M. Dias Branco 
Corporate University offered 
courses given by external partners 
and by its own employees, 
focused on people development 
for getting results.

During 2015, more than 700 
thousand hours of training 
were provided, given both in 
the classroom and on-line, an 
increase of 16% compared to 
2014, according to the following 
table.

AVERAGE NUMBER OF HOURS OF TRAINING PER EMPLOYEE PER YEAR* BROKEN DOWN BY GENDER AND 
FUNCTIONAL CATEGORY   G4-LA9

2014 2015 CHANGE 2015/2014

Total 36.68 42.70 16%

Average hours of training accumulated until December by gender

Men 32.11 35.54 11%

Women 48.87 63.01 29%

Average hours of accumulated training until December by career level

Specialists (professionals and analysts) 55.55 72.86 31%

Management Level 49.15 47.92 -3%

Operational level 40.31 48.75 21%

Sales and Promotion level 13.69 11.80 -14%
* Trainees are not included.

Leadership Development Program (LDP).

PERFORMANCE
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A culture of sustainability

The concept of sustainability 
was inserted in the educational 
strategy of the M. Dias Branco 
Corporate University through 
global content on the subject in 
corporate training courses and 
in the Leadership School, where 
it shall be unfolded gradually to 
the various audiences. Specific 
contents on environment were 
also identified in the Industrial 
School.

There was also the inclusion 
of the content on sustainability 
in the training courses on 
integration in all the units in 
which 679 employees took 
part in the year. In addition,  
the multipliers of the human 
resources area were trained 
in this theme and the program 
“ambassadors of sustainability” 
was set up to disseminate the 
culture of sustainability in 
the industrial  units ,  with 
implementation forecast in 
2016. 

I n  2 0 1 5  t h e  I n d u s t r i a l 
Management System (SGI) 
offered training on ISO 9001 
and ISO 14001, in partnership 
with the Corporate University, 
focusing on training managers 
in these standards in the 
Maracanaú/CE and São Caetano 
do Sul / SP units as well as 
FSSC 22000 and HACCP for the 
employees of the Maracanaú/EC, 
Sao Caetano do Sul / SP, Bento 
Gonçalves / RS, Natal / RN units 
and Special Fats and Margarines 
units in Fortaleza / CE, Cabedelo 
/ PB and Jaboticabal / SP. These 
events generated 9,584 hours of 
training in 2015. G4-LA9 

F o r  2 0 1 6  t h e  s y s t e m s 
management area has forecast 
training for internal auditors 
in the standards and new 
corporate procedures, such as 
non-conformity management, 
critical analysis of the Industrial 
Management System (SG) , 
qualification management for 
suppliers, control of records, 
standardization of documents, 
management of internal and 
external audits of SGI and 
good manufacturing practices 
manual, in addition to other 
procedures pertinent to the 
subject.

Training on sustainability was 
also given for adolescents of the 
community in the neighborhood 
the Eusebio/CE unit, taught by 
volunteer employees within 
the partnership with the Jr 
Programme.  Achievement 
of training of adolescents in 
communities and primary 
schools. 

In the long term, the Company 
will seek to apply sustainability 
content in the education of all 
the schools of the Corporate 
University and ensure that 
all employees have a positive 
perception of the company in 
their sustainable attitude, acting 
in pursuit of this concept in their 
work and volunteer activities.

Leadership development 
program 

In 2015 this continuing program 
involved directors and managers 
in discussions of issues that are 
relevant for the business, in 
addition to training the middle 
leadership and operational 
leadership in cultural alignment 
and improving communication 
as a tool for management of 
teams. In all, there were 870 
leaders involved in development 
initiatives, generating over 13 
thousand hours of training.
 

Seminar held with the leaders on the anti-corruption law and prevention and 
repression of inflation against the economic order.
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Partners of Knowledge Program 

In order to encourage the 
sharing of knowledge on topics 
related to business, this initiative 
was implemented in 2015 and 
generated 8,865 hours of training 
given by our employees, where 
2,095 employees were trained in 
88 classes and with 39 replicated 
themes. The program favors 
the common development of 
the employees and generates a 
healthy exchange of knowledge 
between the Company’s various 
areas. 

Trainee program 

It consisted of broad behavioral 
and technical training for 
participants that will assume 
strategic positions in 2016, in 
a number of the Company’s 
factories and business, primarily 
in the industrial area. The 
training involved aspects such 
as personal effectiveness, 
project management, conflict 
management and influence 
without authority, in addition 
to the preparation of technical 
a p p l i c a t i o n  p r o j e c t s  a n d 
individual coaching –  a tool 
that has made an important 
contribution in the trainees’ 
development.

Distance learning 

Another important initiative 
a i m e d  a t  d e v e l o p i n g  o u r 
employees was the engagement 
of a new platform for distance 
learning courses, nationally 
recognized for the quality of its 
services. The courses offered 
have addressed issues in the areas 
of management and leadership, 
t e c h n o l o g y,  p r o f e s s i o n a l 
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initiation, finances, marketing 
and sales, among others. More 
than 1,800 vacancies were offered 
in this mode of education during 
2015.

Developing Talents and Inclusion

More than 1,200 employees rose 
in their careers in 2015, on being 
promoted through the internal 
selection process or through 
merit, denoting the policy for 
retaining talent, which seeks to 
prioritize the filling of vacancies 
with professionals that already 
work at M. Dias Branco. The 
Welcoming Program, started 
in 2014 in three pilot units, 
was expanded in 2015 seeking 
to facilitate the integration of 
disabled professionals, in order 
to favor their inclusion in the 
work environments.

Performance management

The purpose of this program 
is to develop the employees’ 
skills, aiming at continuous 
improvement in individual and 
collective performance. The 
model adopted in M. Dias Branco 
for continued performance 
m a n a g e m e n t  s t r e n g t h e n s 
the alignment of individual 
and strategic goals, provides 
background information for 
promotions, career moves and 
selections, identifies training and 
development needs, improves 
work processes, consolidates 
the culture of meritocracy, 
strengthens the leadership and 
enhances the organizational 
climate.

PERFORMANCE
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The performance management 
model comprises calibration 
tables to enrich the perception of 
the performance of the employees 
by their areas, clients and 
suppliers. Individual feedback 
is provided after the calibration 
tables, with preparation jointly 
by the manager and employee 
evaluated of their respective 
Individual development plan 
(IDP). 

Profit Sharing Program

Por meio dessa iniciativa, todos 
Through this initiative, all the 
employees are stimulated in the 
same direction, clearly explained 
in corporate and sectorial 
indicators and targets. The 
results achieved are rewarded to 
the extent of the performance of 
their areas and of the company 
as a whole.

The disclosure of the results 
achieved compared with the 
goals occurs throughout the year, 
using the mascot “Lucréscio” to 
enable a didactic message that 
encourages the engagement of 
the employees.

Employee Benefits

The company offers various 
benefits to its employees, in 

accordance with this table. G4-LA2

Union Relations

M. Dias Branco holds negotiations 
with all  the unions of the 
categories in which it operates. 
Union negotiations are closed by 
collective agreement, where the 
employees are always informed 
of the progress of the negotiations. 
Through dialogue and mediation, 
the Company seeks to consider in 
the discussions both the external 
situation (inflation, GDP, the 
country’s growth, the level of 
unemployment and the inflation 
adjustment of the minimum wage) 
as well as the specific scenario of 
the business (sales performance 
and compliance with the budget) 
to support reviews of wages and 
benefits. G4-LA11

Internal Communication

In order to maintain good 
communication with 
employees, a number of internal 

2015

Rewards and Benefits Audience

Life insurance All employees.

Health care plan All employees.

Meals (in the company's refectory or luncheon vouchers) All employees.

Food (Food vouchers) All industrial units.

Agreements with institutions (Discounts for employees in 
pharmacies, universities, language courses, gyms, opticians, 
schools)

All employees.

Christmas hamper of the Company's products All employees.

Transport (specific route or transport vouchers) All employees.

Program for gymnastics in the workplace All industrial units.

Quality of life program (leisure structures for employees, 
vaccination campaigns, lectures for raising awareness concerning  
occupational health and safety) 

All industrial units.

M. Dias Branco Well-being Program (Recognition of talents 
and employees with more than 10 years’ service). 

All industrial units.

Profit sharing program All employees, except 
trainees.

BENEFITS GRANTED TO EMPLOYEES  G4-LA2

vehicles are adopted, such as 
bulletin boards, printed reports, 
intranet, text messages via cell 
phone and e-mails. In 2015, we 
highlight the launching of the 
Corporate Magazine “Sabor da 
Noticia”, which disseminates 
best practices and information 
in order to keep the whole team 
informed with respect to the 
business.

The “Porta Vozes” programme 
is an important tool for 
involving the employees, 
establishing an open channel 
for receiving suggestions and 
explaining doubts. In 2015, 
this program was expanded, 
promoting monthly meetings 
for discussing the employees’ 
ideas with the leadership levels 
and Human Resources.

To promote dissemination of 
the culture of sustainability, a 
communication programme 
related to this theme was 
devised, with the visual identity 

Lucréscio: PLR 
mascot.
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below, focused on facilitating 
the dissemination of actions 
among the employees.

Various initiatives were 
developed in 2015 to 
strengthen this engagement 
with sustainability. An 
incentive campaign was held 
to encourage the rational 
use of natural resources, in 
addition to material published 
on the subject in various 
communication channels, 
including those focused on 
the managers. There was 
wide internal and external 
dissemination of the social 
actions performed by the 
company, as well as the 
inclusion of the sustainability 
policy on the company site and 
on the intranet.

For the forthcoming years, the 
company intends to intensify 
the practices of communication, 
education and management 
to further encourage its 

team to submit suggestions 
that take into consideration 
sustainable concepts that 
promote an improvement in 
business results. In addition, 
a “Sustainability Week” will 
be scheduled to disseminate 
good practices in this area and 
strengthen the employees’ 
volunteer activities.

OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH 
AND SAFETY 

T h r o u g h  t h e  “ P o s i t i v e ” 
p r o g ra m m e  t h e  c o m p a ny 
strengthens its management 
practices for excellence in 
o c c u p a t i o n a l  h e a l t h  a n d 
safety. This programme aims 
to strengthen the culture of 
worker safety and health, in 
order to permit the promotion 
of safe attitudes, such as an 
increased perception of risk by 
everyone, and the consequent 
minimization of the occurrence 
of accidents. The program is 
based on the strengthening 

of the concept that safety is 
everyone’s responsibility.

In 2015, the Safety and Health 
D i a l o g u e s  r e c e i v e d  l a r g e 
audiences, with the participation 
of 62% of the employees with 
internal activities in the factories 
(35% in 2014). In addition, 
the good practice of starting 
all meetings in the company 
with a few words concerning 
health and safety has been 
strengthened.

Another initiative in the year 
that deserves special mention 
w a s  t h e  f o r m a t i o n  o f  a 
multidisciplinary team to comply 
with Regulatory Standard 12 of 
the Ministry of Labour, which 
addresses security in the work 
place with respect to machines 
and equipment.

The following improvements 
were achieved in Eusébio/CE, 
Fats and Margarines in Fortaleza, 
Salvador/BA, Maracanaú/CE, 

Visual identity of the initiatives that drive corporate sustainability.

PERFORMANCE
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Preventive medicine actions are performed in the company, such aslabor massages.

São Caetano do Sul/SP and Bento 
Gonçalves/RS:

• New operating procedures for 
standardization between the 
units.

• Means of communication 
for deviations and incidents 
(security alert) with structured 
implementation.

• Formation of multidisciplinary 
committees to address health 
and safety, as well as groups for 
Observing Safe Behavior.

•  Formation of groups for 
gathering data on dangers, 
damages and risks.

These actions have achieved 
excellent results in the accident 
frequency rate (TF), which 
was 1.02. On the other hand, 
due to a fatality that occurred 
in early 2015, the severity rate 
(TG) was 56.4212. With respect 
to absenteeism13, the rate was 

e x a m i n a t i o n s ,  i n t e r n a l 
communication actions were 
performed to stimulate their 
implementation within the 
established time limits, including 
implementation of disciplinary 
measures of discipline to ensure 
that the employees, themselves, 
keep an eye on their own health. 
This resulted in a percentage of 
97% of periodic examinations 
performed in the period.

I n  2 0 1 5 ,  t h e r e  w e r e  n o 
occupational diseases related to 
noise-induced loss of hearing. The 
indicator is in conformity with 
Annex I of Regulatory Standard 
– NR 07, Ministry of Labour and 
Employment Ordinance 19, of 
04/09/1998. 

M. Dias Branco has a hearing 
c o n s e r v a t i o n  p r o g r a m , 
implemented in 1996 and 
reviewed annually in each unit, 
based on the Environmental Risk 
Prevention Program, established 
in Regulatory Standard 9. The 

2.89%, a slight drop compared to 
the previous year (3% in 2014).  
G4-LA6

The main challenges in the 
long term are to implement the 
“Positive” Programme in all the 
units, to reduce the number of 
accidents reaching a frequency 
rate of 0.5 in 2021 and to ensure 
the maturity of the System of 
Management for Occupational 
Health and Safety, with a view 
to possible certification in 
accredited standards.

The occupational health 
initiatives are aimed at 
continuous improvement 
in the quality of life of the 
employee. In 2015, they focused 
on the updating of periodic 
examinations, on monitoring of 
hearing for prevention of loss 
of hearing and on the actions 
of the Preventive Medicine 
Programme.

With respect to the periodic 

12 TF – frequency rate = number of typical accidents with periods of absence * 200,000 / man hours worked | TG – rate of severity = number of days lost * 200,000 / man hours worked (typical number 
of days lost). Due to the integration process, the numbers for the rate of frequency and rate of severity in 2014 did not include the Jaboatão dos Guararapes/PE unit. For this reason, the comparison 
for 2015/2014 is not viable due to the lack of information. The 2015 data include all the industrial units.

13 Não estão inclusos nos cálculos de absenteísmo: afastamento pelo INSS (auxílio-doença, acidente de trabalho, licença maternidade), serviço militar, licença remunerada. Estão inclusos no cálculo 
as licenças legais (licença paternidade, licença óbito, doação de sangue), atestados até 15 dias, faltas injustificadas e atrasos. Desconsiderar as unidades Caruaru, Moinho Paraná e Moinho Eusébio.
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14 Our Quality Policy is available at www.mdiasbranco.com.br/qualidade/.

risk from the noise levels in 
each area of the manufacturing 
park of all the industrial units is 
assessed. 

Among the various actions of the 
Hearing Conservation Program 
in the year, we emphasize 
the following, focused on the 
preservation of the hearing of all 
employees exposed to noise: G4-LA7

• Audiometric examinations in 
accordance with the Program for 
Medical Control of Occupational 
Health.
• Phonoaudiological support 
in the assessments of 
environmental noise, in 
conjunction with occupational 
safety. 
• Indication and choice of 
individual hearing protection 
equipment.
• Visits to industrial parks for 
monitoring and orientation for 
the correct use of individual 
hearing protection equipment.
• Performance of educational 
and preventive actions 
concerning hearing health of 
employees. 

We emphasize that the frequency 
rate of occupational diseases with the 
issuance of a work accident report 
was equal to zero. The company has 
an occupational health management 
system with a specialized team in the 
industrial units, as well as in regional 
Health Committees for the purpose of 
preventing diseases and promoting 
the health and quality of life of the 
employees.

There are preventive programs 
such as Ergonomic Assessment, 
Work Gymnastics and a Hearing 
Conservation Programme. Health 
topics are permanently covered 
in internal campaigns and on 
commemorative dates, in accordance 
with the schedule of preventive 
medicine actions, such as Health 
Week, vaccination campaigns and 
prevention of breast, cervical and 
prostate cancers, among others. G4-LA6

For the forthcoming years, 
the company will implement 
monitoring of the number of 
leaves of absence sent to the 
National Social Security Institute 
(INSS), seeking the adoption of 
preventive measures to reduce 

the risk of leaves of absence 
of employees due to sickness. 
It will also make advances 
in the ergonomics program, 
intensifying the management 
and monitoring of the actions, 
with the formation of the 
ergonomics committees and 
optimization of the Programme 
for Prevention of Loss of Hearing, 
thus leading to the strengthening 
of the Preventive Medicine 
Programme.

Ethics channel

With respect to the management 
pract ices  es tabl i shed  for 
dealing with denouncements 
and complaints related to 
human rights, we have adopted 
instruments such as the Code 
of Ethics14, the Ethics Channel 
and the Ethics Committee. 
Complaints received by the 
Ethics Channel are handled by 
a specialized external company. 

In 2015, this channel received six 
complaints (in 2014, there were 
12) on human rights considered 
as justified, all of which were 

Subject

2014 2015

Registered in the 
period

Resolved in the 
period

Registered in the 
period

Resolved in the 
period

Concern — Bullying in the 
workplace 3 3 0 0

Concern — Sexual Harassment 1 1 1 1

Sexual Discrimination 1 1 0 0

Concern — Socio-Environmen-
tal Responsibility 1 1 5 5

Occupational Health and 
Safety 6 6 0 0

Total 12 12 6 6

ETHICS CHANNEL – NUMBER OF DENOUNCEMENTS AND COMPLAINTS RELATED TO IMPACTS ON 
HUMAN RIGHTS REGISTERED, PROCESSED AND RESOLVED THROUGH FORMAL MECHANISMS G4-HR12

PERFORMANCE
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QUALITY 
CERTIFICATION 
DENOTES OUR 
COMMITMENT TO 
CUSTOMERS AND 
SUPPLIERS.

15 Our Quality Policy is available at www.mdiasbranco.com.br/qualidade/.

resolved in the same year, in 
accordance with the table below. 
G4-56, G4-HR12

Through the corporate University, 
the Legal Board held a seminar 
on Anti-corruption Law and 
Prevention/Prosecution of 
violations against the economic 
order, with lectures by renowned 
teachers.

Finally, for the development 
and valorisation of the internal 
public, R$ 203.5 million was 
invested in 2015, (R$ 191.9 
million in 2014) in occupational 
health and assistance programs, 
food, transport, labor safety, 
training , profit sharing  and 
other benefits. 

These init iatives have al l 
been designed to provide 
a  s a f e r  a n d  h e a l t h i e r 
workplace and contribute to 

our employees’professional 
development. M. Dias Branco 
believes that these practices 
help deliver excellence in 
performance; enhance our 
human and social capital ; 
and sustainably contribute to 
continued business growth.

CUSTOMERS AND 
CONSUMERS 

M. Dias Branco adopts best Food 
Safety and Quality management 
practices to ensure we offer 
high quality products to our 
customers and consumers. Our 
management model is based on 
ISO 9001 (Quality Management) 
and ISO 22000 (Food Safety 
Management) and conforms to 
our Quality Policy15. The Eusébio/
CE business unit is currently 
certified to ISO 9001, ISO 22000 
and ISO 14001.

The Special Fats and Margarines 
unit in Fortaleza/CE is certified 
to ISO 9001 and ISO 22000. Our 
business units in Salvador/BA, 
Cabedelo/PB and Jaboatão dos 
Guararapes/PE are certified 
within the Hazard Analysis 
Critical Control Point (HACCP) 
program. The Jaboatão dos 
Guararapes/PE unit is also 
certified to ISO 9001 and ISO 
14001. The Bento Gonçalves/RS 
unit and the Dias Branco Mill 
(Fortaleza/CE) are certified to 
ISSO 9001.

M. Dias Branco plans to migrate 
our current ISSO 22000 food 
safety management model to 
FSSC 22000 at all units, and 
initiate implementation of a 
Manufacturing Management 
System conforming to ISO 9001 
and ISO 14001 at some units. 

BENEFITS (R$ MILLION)

2015

6.04%

2014

191.9 203.5
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In 2015, the Milling unit in 
Fortaleza/CE and the Jaboatão 
dos Guararapes/PE and Bento 
Gonçalves/RS units renewed 
their certification to ISO 9001; the 
Natal/RN and Salvador/BA units 
renewed their Hazard Analysis 
Critical Control Point (HACCP) 
certif ication fol lowing an 
independent audit. In addition, 
186 employees at Eusébio/CE 
and Jaboatão dos Guararapes/
PE were trained on sensory 
analysis. The first edition of our 
Good Manufacturing Practices 
Week was also held at Jaboatão 
dos Guararapes/PE. 

To improve transparency and 
engagement with customers and 
consumers, a Customer Service 
Desk is in the process of being 
implemented in accordance with 
Total Quality principles. This 
will support the collection of 
corporate assessment indicators. 
The Customer Service Desk will 
provide a channel for compiling 
standardized information and 
allow us to respond to customer 
requests quickly and effectively. 
Interfaces like these will be 
essential in enhancing our 
innovation processes within the 
Company over the long term.

In 2015, a total of 563 calls were 
taken by our service desks in 
Eusébio (CE) and São Caetano 
do Sul (SP). The most frequent 
queries relate to salespersons 
visits, unavailable products, 
delayed deliveries, misdelivered 
products and busy toll-free help 
desk numbers. In March 2015 the 
helpdesk in São Caetano do Sul 
(SP) was transferred to Eusébio 
(CE). The Vitarella and Pilar 
service desks in Jaboatão dos 
Guararapes/PE received 34 calls 

relating to lack of sales person 
assistance, unavailable products 
and delayed orders. G4-27 and G4-PR2

All  notices received from 
regulators relating to product 
composition and labeling are 
monitored by the Regulatory 
Affairs department. The control 
system is fed with information 
from the Legal Department 
and Food Safety and Quality 
Management department. In 
2015 there were seven instances 
of labeling nonconformities. Of 
the seven instances, six were 
related to biscuits and one to 
pasta products. The alleged 
nonconformities were related 
to the nutritional facts table, the 
ingredients list and the best before 

date and lot number markings. 
The company presented its 
defense and clarifications on 
all instances, and corrected any 
confirmed product labeling 
nonconformities. G4-27 and G4-PR4

The Jaboatão dos Guararapes/PE 
site received a complaint related 
to the “É Mais Família Vitarella” 
promotion, in which a customer 
expressed concern about the 
delay in announcing the raffle 
results. 

No significant penalties or fines 
were recorded during the period 
in relation to the Company’s 
products or services, or any risks 
to consumer health and safety. 
G4-PR6, G4-PR7 and G4-PR9

An employee at the Customer Service Desk.

PERFORMANCE
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Customers tasting Fortaleza toast with Amarela margarine at a point of sale.
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COMMODITIES AND SUPPLIES

COURSES OF ACTION

• SOCIAL AND ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS IN 
PROCUREMENT.

• SOCIAL AND ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS 
RELATED TO AGRICULTURAL COMMODITIES.

SUPPLIERS

Supplier management is within 
the scope of our Manufacturing 
Management  System.  The 
departments responsible for 
this process at M. Dias Branco 
are Procurement, Commodities, 
Systems Management, Food 
Safety, Environment, Third-
Party Management and Research 
& Development.

In February 2015 the Company 
c r e a t e d  a  T h i r d - P a r t y 
Management department to 
monitor service providers’ 
compliance with labor, social 
security,  and occupational 
health and safety requirements 
in relation to their employees, 
helping to ensure that applicable 
regulations are heeded and 
workers’ rights are upheld. G4-LA14

Further progress was made 
on qualifications management 
initiatives initiated in 2014 
within the supplier management 
p r o g r a m .  Q u a l i f i c a t i o n 
management is a tool used to 
ensure that appropriate quality, 
food safety,  sustainability, 
cost ,  competit iveness and 
c o m m i t m e n t  l e v e l s  a r e 
maintained, and is an important 
and necessary initiative to 

ensure that M. Dias Branco 
will continue to meet quality 
and efficiency objectives in 
procurement of materials and 
services, and achieve optimal 
value-for-cost and sustainable 
processes.

Key initiatives developed in 2015 
include: 

•  D e v e l o p e d  a  S y s t e m s 
Management procedure for 
Supplier Qualification as a 
joint effort of the Procurement, 
Commodities, Sustainability, 
R&D, Third-Party Management 
and other related departments.

•  C r e a t e d  q u a l i f i c a t i o n 
questionnaires for suppliers 
of direct materials, indirect 
materials and critical services, 
i n c l u d i n g  i n f o r m a t i o n  o n 
r e g i s t r a t i o n ,  s o c i a l  a n d 
environmental responsibility 
and questions on applicable 
legislation.

• Created a Corporate List of 
Qualified Suppliers for raw 
materials, packaging, services 
a n d  o t h e r  m a t e r i a l s  a n d 
commodities.

SUPPLIER 
CERTIFICATION HELPS 
DRIVE OUR SUPPLIERS’ 
COMMITMENT TO 
SUSTAINABILITY.

PERFORMANCE
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• Created a service provider 
monitoring standard and an 
audit checklist for suppliers of 
direct materials. 

• Created a letter template for 
current and new suppliers 
describing the sustainability 
criteria they will be monitored 
against. 

• The R&D department created a 
Regulatory Information form to 
compile information on product 
composition (nutrition facts, 
allergens, etc.).

• The R&D department created a 
registration form for qualification 
tests for new suppliers/alternative 
manufacturers, new packaging 
materials and new raw materials/
ingredients.

• Created a criticality matrix 
for standardization of critical 
suppliers.

• Developed a map of Procurement 
and Commodities value chain 
risks.

A new corporate supplier 
qualif ication management 
procedure was documented for 
our four procurement groups: 
direct  materials ,  indirect 
materials,  critical services 
related to Quality, Safety and the 
Environment (QSE), and critical 
services not related to QSE.

Our goal for the coming years 
will be to roll out our Supplier 
Qualification Management 
system at all manufacturing 
sites. We will also work to 
include all current suppliers in 
the qualified suppliers groups 

by 2018. 

Our primary categories of 
supplies are: agricultural raw 
materials, flavoring, flexible 
packaging, cardboard boxes, 
r i g i d  p a c k a g i n g  ( p l a s t i c 
containers), machinery and 
equipment and associated 
services. Our product packaging 
is still largely sourced from 
the petrochemical industry 
(polymers and resins), although 
we also use paper and cardboard 
at a large scale. Paper materials 

are preferably sourced from 
local suppliers certified by 
theForest Stewardship Council 
(FSC)16.

Sustainable commodities are 
essential to our business, with 
the majority of the materials in 
our mass balance17 derived from 
only five raw materials: wheat 
and flour, vegetable oils and fats, 
sugar, cocoa and cornstarch. 
These renewable materials 
amounted to 1.8 million metric 
tons in 2015, including fats and 

16 FSC is a nongovernment organization that helps promote responsible forest management worldwide.
17 A mass balance is a budget of the materials used to manufacture our products.

An aerial view of the Salvador/BA manufacturing site on the banks of Aratu Bay; 
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flour purchased from third 
parties.

Sustainable commodities are 
essential to our business, with 
the majority of the materials in 
our mass balance  derived from 
only five raw materials: wheat 
and flour, vegetable oils and fats, 
sugar, cocoa and cornstarch. 
These renewable materials 
amounted to 1.8 million metric 
tons in 2015, including fats and 
flour purchased from third 
parties. G4-EN1

Social  and environmental 
m a n a g e m e n t  m e t r i c s  a r e 
included in the sustainability 
s trateg ies  of  the  leading 
multinational traders with 
which we do business. Therefore, 
sustainability criteria such 
as environmental  impacts 
from agriculture and human 
rights issues are indirectly 
addressed  by  the  supply 
chain. Another significant 
challenge for the Company is to 
encourage enhanced social and 
environmental practices among 

local suppliers.

In relation to climate risks 
deriving from more frequent and 
intense extreme weather events, 
the Company’s weather services 
continuously monitor climate 
data such as precipitation and 
volatility in wheat producing 
regions. Our Risk department 
also has a standard method in 
place to monitor climate issues.

the complex comprises a flour mill and biscuit, pasta and cake mix facilities.

SOCIAL AND 
ENVIRONMENTAL 
MANAGEMENT IN THE 
SUPPLY CHAIN IS AN 
INTEGRAL PART OF 
OUR SUSTAINABILITY 
STRATEGY.

PERFORMANCE



CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE G4-34
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M. Dias Branco continues to strive 
for increasingly high standards 
of Corporate Governance18. 
The Company is listed on the 
Novo Mercado segment of 
BM&FBOVESPA and has a policy 
of ensuring utmost transparency 
in dealing with the market to 
ensure shareholders are able 
to make informed investment 
decisions.

Forty percent of the members 
of our Board of Directors 
are independent members, 
while the Audit Committee 
consists entirely of independent 
members, delivering on our 
commitment  to  providing 
high-quality and transparent 
informat ion.  In  2015  we 
perfected our information 
disclosure and usage policy for 
conformity to current market 
practices and CVM19 Instruction 
547/2014.

Our Investor Relations function 
has continued to serve investors 
and market analysts, and in 2015 
held four conferences and three 
non-deal roadshows in Brazil, 
and two conferences overseas. 
In all, more than 570 interactions 
were recorded during the year in 
which we responded to queries 
from interested parties and 
helped to enhance transparency 
in our financial disclosures. 

P u b l i s h i n g  t h i s  A n n u a l 
Report with comprehensive 
information on financial, social 
and environmental performance 
a n d  c o n f o r m i n g  t o  G R I 
Guidelines is another initiative 

to improve transparency and 
our commitment to corporate 
governance.

Matters related to strategic, social, 
environmental and financial 
performance are discussed by the 
Executive Committee (consisting 
of non-statutory Directors), 
which reports regularly to the 
Statutory Board (consisting of the 
Chairman and Vice Chairman). 
Ethics issues are addressed by the 
Ethics Committee, which reports 
directly to the Audit Committee. 
G4-56

In  2015 a  Sustainabil i ty 
Committee  was created to 
advise the Executive Board on 
implementing the Company’s 
sustainability practices. The 
Sustainability Committee is a 
standing committee that meets 
every six months and has the 
following responsibilities:

• Establish a sustainability policy 
for the Company.

• Manage the outcomes of 
working groups established for 
sustainability initiatives.

• Monitor the preparation of the 
Company’s Annual Report.

• Annually benchmark the 
C o m p a ny ’s  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y 
practices against leading listed 
companies.

• Submit sustainability program 
proposals to the Executive 
Committee for consideration.

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

18 The information provided on members of governance bodies is as of the date of this report (May 2016).
19 CVM - Comissão de Valores Mobiliários.

Regular management meetings strengthen our corporate governance.
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20 The information provided on members of governance bodies is as of the date of this report (May 2016).

GOVERNANCE BODIES

NOME                              POSITION AGE GENDER

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

FRANCISCO IVENS DE SÁ DIAS BRANCO CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 81 M

MARIA CONSUELO SARAIVA LEÃO DIAS BRANCO BOARD MEMBER 81 F

MARIA DAS GRAÇAS DIAS BRANCO DA ESCÓSSIA BOARD MEMBER 56 F

AFFONSO CELSO PASTORE INDEPENDENT MEMBER 76 M

FRANCISCO QUEIROZ MAIA JÚNIOR INDEPENDENT MEMBER 59 M

AUDIT COMMITTEE

ANTONIO CARLOS DIAS COELHO INDEPENDENT MEMBER – CHAIRMAN 68 M

JOANÍLIA NEIDE DE SALES INDEPENDENT MEMBER 52 F

JOSÉ CARLOS PINHO DE PAIVA TIMBÓ INDEPENDENT MEMBER 67 M

STATUTORY EXECUTIVE BOARD

FRANCISCO IVENS DE SÁ DIAS BRANCO JÚNIOR CHAIRMAN 55 M

FRANCISCO CLÁUDIO S. LEÃO DIAS BRANCO INDUSTRIAL VICE-PRESIDENT, MILLING 49 M

FRANCISCO MARCOS SARAIVA L. DIAS BRANCO VICE-PRESIDENT, COMMERCIAL 51 M

GERALDO LUCIANO MATTOS JÚNIOR VICE-PRESIDENT, INVESTMENTS AND CONTROLLERSHIP 53 M

MARIA DAS GRAÇAS DIAS BRANCO DA ESCÓSSIA VICE-PRESIDENT, FINANCIAL 56 F

MARIA REGINA SARAIVA L. D. B. XIMENES VICE-PRESIDENT, MANAGEMENT AND DEVELOPMENT 54 F

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

ANTONIO RYNALDO S. GUIMARAES COMMERCIAL 73 M

ARISTÓFANES MARTINS DE ALEXANDRE COMMERCIAL 50 M

CÉSAR MARTINS ROSA VASCONCELOS REIS EXPORTS 37 M

DANIEL MOTA GUTIERREZ LEGAL 43 M

FERNANDO BOCCHI R&D 49 M

JÚLIO BORGES DE CARVALHO AUDIT, RISK AND COMPLIANCE 38 M

LUIS CRISTIANO PRAZEIRES ALBUQUERQUE MANAGEMENT AND INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 43 M

LUIZA ANDRÉA FARIAS NOGUEIRA RIBEIRO ORGANIZATIONAL DEVELOPMENT 51 F

MARCOS ROBERTO PINHEIRO DA SILVEIRA INTEGRATED LOGISTICS 46 M

MARCELINO DE FREITAS CARVALHO NEW BUSINESS AND INVESTOR RELATIONS 56 M

MARK STANLEY LUYT MILLING 54 M

MARTIM FRANCISCO DE A. IBRAHIM BERNARDARA MARKETING 39 M

MAURÍCIO FREITAS DE ARAÚJO MANUFACTURING 60 M

SIDNEY LEITE DOS SANTOS OPERATIONS 49 M

VERA MARIA RODRIGUES PONTE CONTROLLERSHIP 52 F

ETHICS COMMITTEE

DANIEL MOTA GUTIERREZ LEGAL 43 M

JÚLIO BORGES DE CARVALHO AUDIT, RISK AND COMPLIANCE 38 M

LUIZA ANDRÉA FARIAS NOGUEIRA RIBEIRO ORGANIZATIONAL DEVELOPMENT 51 F

SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE

ALED CARVALHO PARRY SUSTAINABILITY MANAGER 51 M

JÚLIO BORGES DE CARVALHO AUDIT, RISK AND COMPLIANCE 38 M

LUIZA ANDRÉA FARIAS NOGUEIRA RIBEIRO ORGANIZATIONAL DEVELOPMENT 51 F

MARCELINO DE FREITAS CARVALHO NEW BUSINESS AND INVESTOR RELATIONS 56 M

SIDNEY LEITE DOS SANTOS OPERATIONS 49 M

COMPOSITION OF GOVERNANCE BODIES BY GENDER AND AGE RANGE20: G4-34

PERFORMANCE





FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014 (in thousands of reais)

Parent company Consolidated

Assets 2015 2014 2015 2014

Current

Cash and cash equivalents 348,448 446,760 348,800 447,283 

Trade receivables 597,942 591,446 597,952 591,639 

Inventory 675,280 461,394 675,304 461,418 

Taxes recoverable 238,785 97,287 238,838 97,332 

Short-term financial investments - non-cash 

equivalents

6,142 1,233 6,142 1,233 

Other receivables 38,866 34,985 39,072 35,111 

Prepaid expenses 1,716 1,765 1,716 1,765 

1,907,179 1,634,870 1,907,824 1,635,781

Noncurrent

Long-term

Short-term investments  4,070  8,988 4,070 8,988 

Judicial deposits 71,801 63,807 71,806 63,807 

Recoverable taxes - LP 85,015 92,495 85,015 92,495 

Tax incentives/other receivables 12,699 9,120 12,696 9,118 

173,585 174,410 173,587 174,408

Capital expenditure 25,591 27,468 23,002 24,410 

Property, plant and equipment 2,155,275 1,804,669 2,156,361 1,805,949

Intangible assets 838,803 837,699 838,803  837,699

3,193,254 2,844,246 3,191,753 2,842,466

Total assets 5,100,433 4,479,116 5,099,577 4,478,247 

See the accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Parent company Consolidated

Liabilities 2015 2014 2015 2014

Current

Trade payables 135,946 87,509 135,946 87,520 

Loans and financing from financing institutions 370,582 273,908 370,582 273,908 

Tax financing 13,980 19,078 13,980 19,078 

Direct financing  7,467  6,690 7,467 6,690 

Social and labor obligations 124,688 105,588 124,855 105,747 

Income taxes and contributions payable 399 4,294 399 4,294 

Taxes and contributions 58,312 57,428 58,350 57,474 

Advances from customers 11,286 7,073 11,286 7,073 

Other accounts payable 31,103 34,300 29,994 33,181 

Proposed dividends 21,668 82,555 21,668 82,555 

Government subsidies 9,175 9,289 9,175 9,289 

784,606 687,712 783,702 686,809 

Noncurrent

Loans and financing from financing institutions 294,616 252,380 294,616 252,380 

Tax financing 1,551 7,318 1,551 7,318 

Direct financing 66,948 74,047 66,948 74,047 

Taxes and contributions 968 1,081 968 1,081 

Deferred income and social contribution liabilities 129,984 104,632 129,984 104,632 

Other accounts payable 9,858 7,240 9,906 7,274 

Government subsidies 0 120 0 120 

Provision for civil, labor and tax contingencies 94,957 58,943 94,957 58,943 

598,882 505,761 598,930 505,795

Equity

Social capital 1,701,692 990,014 1,701,692 990,014 

Capital reserves 16,529 16,529 16,529 16,529 

Cumulative translation adjustment 120 73 120 73 

Equity appraisal adjustment 0 3 0 3 

Revenue reserves 1,938,909 2,223,964 1,938,909 2,223,964 

Additional dividends 59,695 55,060 59,695 55,060 

Total equity of controlling shareholders 3,716,945 3,285,643 3,716,945 3,285,643

Total liabilities and equity 5,100,433 4,479,116 5,099,577 4,478,247 
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STATEMENT OF INCOME

Years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 
(In thousands of Reais, except net income per share)

Parent company Consolidated

2015 2014 2015 2014

Net operating revenue 4,622,164 4,579,890 4,622,164 4,579,890

Cost of goods sold  (3,182,868)  (3,034,979)  (3,183,076)  (3,034,837)

Subsidies for state investment 216,680 179,474 216,680 179,474

Gross income 1,655,976 1,724,385 1,655,768 1,724,527 

Operating revenue (expense)

Sales expenses (888,612) (832,625) (888,612) (832,625)

Administrative expenses (145,648) (158,444) (145,973) (158,766)

Management fees (11,416) (10,496) (11,416) (10,496)

Tax expense (17,749) (20,110) (17,758) (20,117)

Depreciation and amortization expense (20,758) (19,611) (20,758) (19,611)

Other net revenue (expense) 9,440 (14,932) 9,434 (14,948)

Net income before net financial revenue 
(expense), equity income, and tax 581,233 668,167 580,685 667,964 

Financial revenue 161,812 70,378 161,847 70,440

Financial expense (100,444) (82,304) (100,447) (82,320)

Financial revenue (expense) 61,368 (11,926) 61,400 (11,880)

Equity in net income of subsidiaries (516) (169) - -

Net income before income and social contribution 
taxes

642,085 656,072 642,085 656,084

Income tax and social contribution (38,160) (56,810) (38,160) (56,822)

Net income for the year 603,925 599,262 603,925 599,262 

Income attributable to:

Controlling shareholders 603,925 599,262 603,925 599,262 

Net income for the year 603,925 599,262 603,925 599,262 

Basic and diluted earnings per common share (R$) 5,33679 5,28217 5,33679 5,28217 

Average number of shares (ex-treasury shares) 113,162,592 113,450,000 113,162,592 113,450,000

See the accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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See the accompanying notes to the financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS – INDIRECT METHOD

Years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 (in thousands of Reais)

Parent company Consolidated

2015 2014 2015 2014

Cash flows from operating activities

Net income before income and social contribution taxes 642,085  656,072 642,085 656,084

Reconciliation of income (loss) to cash provided by operating 
activities:

Depreciation and amortization 105,951  102,420  105,951 102,420 

Cost on the sale of permanent assets 317  113  317  113 

Equity in net income of subsidiaries 516  169  -  - 

Restatement of financing and short-term investments 150,105  62,416  150,105  62,416 

Import Pis and Cofins tax credits (98,678)  -  (98,678)  - 

Provision for civil, labor and tax contingencies 36,014  2,785  36,014  2,785 

Provision for doubtful accounts 23,308  9,566  23,308  9,566 

Inventory impairment 1,342  2,365  1,342  2,365 

Changes in assets and liabilities

(Increase) in trade accounts receivable (29,804)  (132,573) (29,621) (132,637)

(Increase) decrease in inventories (210,388)  17,452  (210,193)  17,637 

(Increase) in short-term investments (4,656)  (1,200)  (4,656)  (1,200)

(Increase) decrease in recoverable taxes (7,010)  (9,688)  (7,012)  (9,687)

(Increase) in other accounts receivable (17,031)  (16,148)  (17,117)  (16,093)

Increase in trade payables 48,437  1,975  48,426  1,966 

Decrease in taxes  and contributions (7,360)  (7,612)  (7,368)  (7,616)

Increase (decrease) in government subsidies (234)  4,289  (234)  4,289 

Increase in accounts payable and provisions 22,730  16,946  22,811  16,964 

Interest and exchange variance paid (128,372) (30,937) (128,372) (30,937)

Income and social contribution taxes paid (36.950)  (32,333)  (36,956)  (32,363)

Release of incentives for reinvestment 533  -  533  - 

Net cash and cash equivalents provided by operating activities 490,855 646,077 490,685 646,072

Cash flows from investment activities

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (398,548)  (344,995) (398,549) (344,996)

Amortization of debt on the acquisition of companies (11,205)  (9,020)  (11,205)  (9,020)

Noncurrent call deposits  -  (3,664)  -  (3,664)

Net cash used in investment activities (409,753) (357,679)  (409,754)  (357,680)

Cash flows from financing activities

Interest on shareholders’ equity paid (194,112)  (117,270) (194,112) (117,270)

Financing taken out 476,684  390,168  476,684  390,168 

Financing payments (422,544)  (420,752)  (422,544)  (420,752)

Acquisition of stock issued by the Company (39,442) -  (39,442)  - 

Net cash used in financing activities (179,414)  (147,854) (179,414)  (147,854)

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (98,312) 140,544 (98,483) 140,538

446,760  306,216 447,283  306,745 

At end of year 348,448 446,760 348,800 447,283 

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (98,312) 140,544 (98,483) 140,538
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STATEMENT OF ADDED VALUE 

Parent company Consolidated
2015 2014 2015 2014

Revenue
Sales of goods, products and services 5,284,528 5,236,389 5,284,528 5,236,389
Other revenue 78,652 24,149 78,652 24,149
Revenue relating to construction of company assets 121,431 46,743 121,431 46,743
Provision for doubtful accounts – reversal (recognition) (23,308) (9,566) (23,308) (9,566)

5,461,303 5,297,715 5,461,303 5,297,715
Inputs purchased from third parties

Cost of goods sold and services rendered (2,160,312) (2,069,845) (2,160,520) (2,069,702)
Material, electricity, outsourced services and other (1,275,241) (1,194,413) (1,275,460) (1,194,639)
Materials relating to construction of company assets (88,734) (38,118) (88,734) (38,118)

(3,524,287) (3,302,376) (3,524,714) (3,302,459)

Gross value added 1,937,016 1,995,339 1,936,589 1,995,256
Withholding

Depreciation and amortization (105,951) (102,420) (105,951) (102,420)
Net value added 1,831,065 1,892,919 1,830,638 1,892,836

Transferred value added
Equity in income of subsidiaries (516) (169) - -
Financial revenue 161,812 70,378 161,847 70,440

Total added value to be distributed 1,992,361 1,963,128 1,992,485 1,963,276
Distribution of value added

Payroll and related charges 761,962 705,698 762,058 705,796
Direct compensation 510,816 464,499 510,896 464,579
Rewards and Benefits 203,512 191,843 203,528 191,861
FGTS 44,573 46,343 44,573 46,343
Other 3,061 3,013 3,061 3,013

Taxes 502,901 557,876 502,926 557,910
Federal 312,193 319,475 312,218 319,509
State 184,013 230,734 184,013 230,734
Municipal 6,695 7,667 6,695 7,667

Third-party capital remuneration 123,573 100,292 123,576 100,308
Interest 100,444 82,304 100,447 82,320
Rent 23,129 17,988 23,129 17,988

Interest on equity 603,925 599,262 603,925 599,262
Dividends and interest on equity 137,680 137,612 137,680 137,612
Tax incentives 261,068 239,090 261,068 239,090
Retained earnings 205,177 222,560 205,177 222,560

1,992,361 1,963,128 1,992,485 1,963,276

M. Dias Branco S.A. Indústria e Comércio de Alimentos and Consolidated

Statements of Added Value
Years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 (in thousands of reais)

See the accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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A communication campaign in 2015 disseminated our Vision, 
Mission and Values among employees.



ASSURANCE 
LETTER
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ASSURANCE LETTER
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ASSURANCE LETTER  G4-33
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GRI CONTENT INDEX  G4-32 

STANDARD DISCLOSURES

General 
Standard 
Disclosures

Page (or Link) Independent 

assurance

STRATEGY AND ANALYSIS

G4-1 Pages 24 and 25.  

ORGANIZATIONAL PROFILE

G4-3 Pages 5, 6 and 7.  

G4-4 Pages 5, 6 and 7.  

G4-5 Pages 5, 6 and 7.  

G4-6 Pages 5, 6 and 7.  

G4-7 Pages 5, 6 and 7.  

G4-8 Pages 5, 6 and 7.  

G4-9 Pages 5, 6 and 7.  

G4-10 Page 78. The Company had 17,292 employees in December 2015. All employees are permanent employees under indefinite term, full-
time employment contracts, with the exception of apprentices. Yes

G4-11 All employees are covered by collective bargaining agreements.  

G4-12 Pages 34 and 35.  

G4-13 There were no significant changes during the reporting period in relation to the organization's size, structure, ownership or supply chain.  

G4-14 The precautionary approach is addressed through our risk management system.  

G4-15 The Company does not subscribe to externally developed economic, environmental and social charters, principles, or other initiatives.  

G4-16 The Company is a member of the Advisory Committee to the Brazilian Food Industry Association and the Management Committee of the 
Brazilian Association of Industrial Biscuit, Pasta, Bread & Cake Industry.  

IDENTIFIED MATERIAL ASPECTS AND BOUNDARIES

G4-17 This information is contained in the consolidated financial statements and the reference form filed with the Brazilian Securities Commis-
sion (CVM). For further information, please visit the Company website at: www.mdiasbranco.com.br/ri  

G4-18 Pages 16 to 23.  

G4-19 Pages 16 to 23.  

G4-20 Pages 16 to 23.  

G4-21 Pages 16 to 23.  

G4-22
Energy consumption and injury frequency and severity rate data for the Jaboatão dos Guararapes (PE) site has been included in this 
report but was not included in the 2014 report due to the integration process. The Recife/PE and Jaboticabal/SP manufacturing sites 
were shut down in 2015.

 

G4-23 There were no significant changes.  

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

G4-24 Pages 16 to 23.  

G4-25 Pages 16 to 23.  

G4-26 Pages 16 to 23.  

G4-27 Page 75 (Social Investment and Communities) and page 87 (Transparency & Engagement – Customers & Consumers).  

REPORT PROFILE

G4-28 Pages 16 to 23.  

G4-29 Pages 16 to 23.  

G4-30 Pages 16 to 23.  

G4-31 For further information please write to sustentabilidade@mdiasbranco.com.br.  

G4-32 Pages 16, 108, 109 and 110.  

G4-33 Pages 106 and 107.  

GOVERNANCE

G4-34 Page 95 and Company website: www.mdiasbranco.com.br/ri.  

ETHICS AND INTEGRITY

G4-56 Pages 7, 39, 85 and 94. Our values and principles can be viewed at: http://ri.mdiasbranco.com.br/mdiasbranco/web/  
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SUSTAINABILITY ASSURANCE

STANDARD DISCLOSURES

Material 
Aspects

Information on mana-
gement approach and 
disclosures

Omissions Independent 
assurance

NUTRITION & HEALTHINESS

FP7-DMA Page 56.

FPSD-FP7 Page 57. Yes

PACKAGING AND WASTE

G4-DMA Page 60.   

G4-EN1 Page 60. Because this information is strategic to the business, the Company reports on the quantity of plastic and 
paper and cardboard packaging in aggregate. Yes

G4-DMA Page 62.  

G4-EN23 Page 63. The Company has not disclosed information on hazardous and non-hazardous waste by method of disposal, 
but will consider disclosing this information in the future. Yes

WATER AND WASTEWATER

G4-DMA Page 64.  

G4-EN8 Page 65.  Yes

G4-EN10 Page 65.  

G4-DMA Page 65.  

G4-EN22 Page 65.  Yes

ENERGY AND EMISSIONS

G4-DMA Page 68.  

G4-EN3 Page 69.

Data for all manufacturing units has been included. In 2014 we reported only on electricity consumption 
without including the Jaboatão dos Guararapes (PE) site. From 2015 the total energy consumption of all 
units will be disclosed. Energy consumption at distribution centers is negligible and has not been taken into 
account.

G4-EN5 Page 69.

Data for all manufacturing units has been included. The data has been reviewed and updated as in the 2014 
Report there were no disclosures for the Jaboatão dos Guararapes/PE business unit due to the integration 
process. The data for 2014 and 2015 has therefore been updated to include all business units. Energy 
consumption at distribution centers is negligible and has not been taken into account.

Yes

G4-DMA Page 70.

G4-EN15 Page 70. The Company monitors scope 1 GHG emissions only for the transportation fleet. As part of our Strategic 
Sustainability Agenda, fixed-source emissions will be monitored from 2016 if considered material.

G4-EN21 Page 70.  

G4-DMA Page 70.  

G4-EN30 Page 70.  

SOCIAL INVESTMENT & COMMUNITIES

G4-DMA Page 71.  

G4-SO1 Pages 76 and 77.  Yes

G4-SO2 Page 76.   

TRANSPARENCY AND ENGAGEMENT

G4-DMA Page 82.   

G4-LA2 Page 82.   

G4-DMA Page 83.   

G4-LA6 Pages 84 and 85.

The Company reports on injury frequency and severity rates in accordance with international standards. Due 
to the integration process, frequency rate and severity rate data for 2014 did not include the Jaboatão dos 
Guararapes/PE unit. For this reason, a comparison for 2015/2014 is not viable due to the lack of information. The 
2015 data include all the industrial units.

Yes

G4-LA7 Page 85.  

G4-DMA Page 79.  

G4-LA9 Pages 79 and 80.  Yes

G4-LA11 Page 82.

G4-HR12 Page 85.

G4-PR2 Page 87.
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G4-PR4 Page 87.

G4-PR6 Page 87.

G4-PR7 Page 87.

G4-PR9 Page 87.  

INSUMOS

G4-DMA Page 91.  

G4-EN1 Page 91. Because this information is strategic to the business, the Company reports on the quantities of major 
agricultural feedstocks in aggregate. Yes

G4-DMA Page 89.   

G4-LA14 Page 89.
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